Collective Agreement

between

Animikii Ozoson Child and Family Services Inc.

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union
Local 443

December 1, 2022 to November 30, 2025

Table of Contents

Article 1	Definitions	1
Article 2	Duration of Agreement	4
Article 3	Amendment to the Salary Schedule	4
Article 4	Application of Agreement	4
Article 5	Discrimination	5
Article 6	Management Rights	5
Article 7	Union Business	6
Article 8	Rights of Stewards	7
Article 9	Union Security	8
Article 10	Joint Labour Management Committee	9
Article 11	Recruitment and Appointment	10
Article 12	Probationary Period and Trial Period	11
Article 13	Term Employees	12
Article 14	Hours of Work	13
Article 15	Pay	14
Article 16	Merit Increases	14
Article 17	Retroactivity	15
Article 18	Overtime	16
Article 19	Holidays	17
Article 20	Indigenous Cultural Awareness and/or Training	20
Article 21	Vacation	20
Article 22	Sick Leave	22
Article 23	Addictions	25
Article 24	Medical Fitness	25
Article 25	Workers Compensation	25
Article 26	Bereavement Leave	26
Article 27	Personal Leave	27

Article 28	Critical Illness Leave	28
Article 29	Compassionate Care Leave	30
Article 30	Interpersonal Violence Leave	32
Article 31	Maternity Leave	33
Article 32	Parental Leave	34
Article 33	Court Leave	35
Article 34	Employee Benefit Program	35
Article 35	Family Leave	37
Article 36	Bridging Of Service	38
Article 37	Safety and Health	38
Article 38	Staff Investigation Procedure	42
Article 39	Conduct of Employees	45
Article 40	Disciplinary Action	45
Article 41	Grievance Procedure	46
Article 42	Grievance And Arbitration Procedure	49
Article 43	Reclassification Procedure	51
Article 44	Employee Files	52
Article 45	Performance Appraisal	52
Article 46	Contracting Out	52
Article 47	Seniority	53
Article 48	Lay-Off	54
Article 49	Severance Pay	56
Article 50	Devolution and Transfer of Services	56
Article 51	Technological Change	57
Article 52	Loss Of or Damage to Personal Effects	58
Article 53	Harassment Prevention and Respectful Workplace	59
Article 54	Notice of Resignation	63
Article 55	Registration with Manitoba College of Social Workers	64
Article 56	Civil Liability	65
Article 57	Acting Status	66

Appendix	"A"- Exclusions From the Bargaining Unit	68
Appendix	"B" - Meal Expenses/Travel Allowances	69
Appendix	"C" - Casual Employees	72
Memorandum of Agreement #1		74
Re:	Indigenous Employment Strategy/Representative Workforce	
Memorandum of Agreement #2		76
Re:	Employment Equity	
Memorano	lum of Agreement #3	78
Re:	Developmental Opportunities for Youth in Care	
Salary Schedule		79
	*All changes appear in bold .	

Alphabetical Table of Contents

Article 57	Acting Status	66
Article 23	Addictions	25
Article 3	Amendment to the Salary Schedule	4
Article 4	Application of Agreement	4
Article 26	Bereavement Leave	26
Article 36	Bridging Of Service	38
Article 56	Civil Liability	65
Article 29	Compassionate Care Leave	30
Article 39	Conduct of Employees	45
Article 46	Contracting Out	52
Article 33	Court Leave	35
Article 28	Critical Illness Leave	28
Article 1	Definitions	1
Article 50	Devolution and Transfer of Services	56
Article 40	Disciplinary Action	45
Article 5	Discrimination	5
Article 2	Duration of Agreement	4
Article 34	Employee Benefit Program	35
Article 44	Employee Files	52
Article 35	Family Leave	37
Article 42	Grievance And Arbitration Procedure	49
Article 41	Grievance Procedure	46
Article 53	Harassment Prevention and Respectful Workplace	59
Article 19	Holidays	17
Article 14	Hours of Work	13
Article 20	Indigenous Cultural Awareness and/or Training	20
Article 30	Interpersonal Violence Leave	32
Article 10	Joint Labour Management Committee	9

Article 48	Lay-Off	54
Article 52	Loss Of or Damage to Personal Effects	58
Article 6	Management Rights	5
Article 31	Maternity Leave	33
Article 24	Medical Fitness	25
Article 16	Merit Increases	14
Article 54	Notice of Resignation	63
Article 18	Overtime	16
Article 32	Parental Leave	34
Article 15	Pay	14
Article 45	Performance Appraisal	52
Article 27	Personal Leave	27
Article 12	Probationary Period and Trial Period	11
Article 43	Reclassification Procedure	51
Article 11	Recruitment and Appointment	10
Article 55	Registration with Manitoba College of Social Workers	64
Article 17	Retroactivity	15
Article 8	Rights of Stewards	7
Article 37	Safety and Health	38
Article 47	Seniority	53
Article 49	Severance Pay	56
Article 22	Sick Leave	22
Article 38	Staff Investigation Procedure	42
Article 51	Technological Change	57
Article 13	Term Employees	12
Article 7	Union Business	6
Article 9	Union Security	8
Article 21	Vacation	20
Article 25	Workers Compensation	25
Appendix '	'A"- Exclusions From the Bargaining Unit	67

Appe	ndix '	"B" Meal Expenses/Travel Allowances	68
Appe	ndix '	"C" Casual Employees	71
Memo	orand	lum of Agreement #1	73
	Re:	Indigenous Employment Strategy/Representative Workforce	
Memorandum of Agreement #2		76	
	Re:	Employment Equity	
Memo	orand	lum of Agreement #3	78
	Re:	Developmental Opportunities for Youth in Care	
Salary	Scho	edule	78

*All changes appear in **bold.**

Article 1 Definitions

In this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires, the expressions listed have the following meanings:

- 1:01 "Accumulated Service" means the equivalent length of service acquired by the employee in accordance with the following:
 - (a) Accumulated service is calculated based on all hours for which an employee has received regular pay. This includes regular hours worked and approved leaves of absence from the Employer where regular pay is maintained.
 - (b) Accumulated service does not include overtime hours or any leaves of absence without pay except as provided for in Article 45-Seniority.
 - (c) Accumulated service must be continuous service.
 - (d) One (1) year of accumulated service for employees in seven and a half (7.5) hour per day classifications equals 1,950 hours of accumulated service.
 - (e) An employee can only receive a maximum of one (1) year of accumulated service in any twelve (12) month period.
- **1:02** "Agreement" means the Collective Agreement.
- 1:03 "Authorized Overtime" shall mean overtime authorized by a director, manager or supervisor and where the term "overtime" is used in this Agreement, it shall mean "authorized overtime".
- 1:04 "Calendar Service" means the length of continuous service from the employee's most recent date of hire to the present. Periods of lay-off, while not affecting the continuity of service, are not included in the calculation of calendar service.
- 1:05 "Casual Employee" means an employee who normally works less than the full normal daily, weekly or monthly hours of work, as the case may be, and

whose work is irregular, or non-recurring or does not follow an ongoing predetermined schedule of work on a regular and recurring basis for a period up to three (3) months. Notwithstanding the foregoing, casual employees may be employed for a short duration to replace employees who are absent for any reason.

- 1:06 "Class" or "Class of Position" means a group of positions involving duties and responsibilities so similar that the same or like qualifications may reasonably be required for, and the same schedule or grade of pay can be reasonably applied to, all positions in the group.
- 1:07 "Continuous Service" means consecutive and continuous days, weeks, months and/or years of employment with the Employer where there has been no break in service involving termination of the employee.
- 1:08 "Employee" means a person employed in a position in the bargaining unit.
- 1:09 "Employer" means Animikii Ozoson Child and Family Services Inc. and herein referred to as 'AOCFS' or as the 'Employer'.
- 1:10 "Grade of Pay", "Pay Range" or "Pay Grade" means a series of rates of remuneration for a class that provides for a minimum rate, a maximum rate, and such intermediate rates if any as may be considered necessary to permit periodic increases in remuneration and as set out in Schedule "A".
- 1:11 "Increment" means the amount per annum provided as a rate of increase in the applicable salary payable to any eligible employee, which unless the context of the relevant approved pay range otherwise clearly indicates, may be granted annually on the applicable anniversary dates.
- 1:12 "Lay-off" means to temporarily remove from a position of employment subject to the employee retaining such rights as set out under this Agreement.
- 1:13 "Part-time Employee" means an employee who normally works less than the full normal daily, weekly or monthly hours, as the case may be, and whose work follows an ongoing, predetermined schedule of work on a regular and recurring basis.

Where a pro-rata calculation for a part-time employee is required it will be calculated so that if two (2) part-time employees were sharing a full-time position the total cost is no greater than the cost of having the position filled by a full-time employee.

Where a pro-rata calculation for a part-time employee is required the formula shall be as follows:

Number of regularly scheduled hours the part time employee worked in the proceeding eight (8) weeks

- 1:14 "Position" means a position of employment with AOCFS.
- 1:15 "Promotion" means a change of employment from one (1) position to another having a higher maximum salary.
- 1:16 "Regular Employee" means an employee who carries out and occupies a continuing function in a program and who has all the rights and privileges of permanent status.
- 1:17 "Transfer" means the removal of an employee from a position in a class and appointing the employee to another position in the same class or to another position in a different class having the same maximum rate of pay.
- 1:18 "Union" means the Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union.
- 1:19 Wherever the feminine pronoun is used in this Agreement it includes the masculine pronoun where the context so requires. Where the singular is used it may also be deemed to mean plural.
- 1:20 "Term Employee" means an employee hired for a specific term of employment. The term of employment may be based on a specific period of time or the completion of a project.
- 1:21 "Termination" means the removal for disciplinary reasons from a position of employment for just cause.

Article 2 Duration of Agreement

- 2:01 This Agreement shall become effective from and including December 1, 2022 and shall continue in effect up to and including November 30, 2025 and shall remain in force and effect from year to year thereafter unless written notice to negotiate a renewal, or revision and renewal is given by either party at least forty-five (45) days prior to but not more than one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the expiry date. During the period required to negotiate a renewal, or revision and renewal of this Agreement, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect without change.
- 2:02 Where notice for revision of this Agreement is given under Section 2:01, parties agree to exchange proposals for the revision of the Agreement, no later than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the expiry date of the Agreement. The parties shall, within thirty (30) working days following receipt of the specific proposal for the revision to the Agreement, commence collective bargaining. These time limits may be changed by mutual agreement between the parties hereto.
- 2:03 All additions, deletions, amendments, and/or revisions from the previous Agreement to this Agreement shall be effective the first day of the bi-weekly pay period following the date of signing of this Agreement unless otherwise specified.

Article 3 Amendment to the Salary Schedule

3:01 During the term of this Agreement, amendments to the salary schedule resulting from the introduction of a new classification shall be determined through negotiation between the parties hereto.

Article 4 Application of Agreement

4:01 The terms of this Agreement shall apply to those employees defined in MLB Certificate Number 7247.

4:02 The Employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for those employees within the bargaining unit as set out in Section 4:01 herein and as well such further classes of employees as may be agreed upon by the parties during the term of this Agreement.

Article 5 Discrimination

- 5:01 The parties hereto agree that there shall be no discrimination, harassment, coercion or interference knowingly exercised or practiced with respect to any employee by reason of age, sex, sexual orientation, size, gender, marital status, race, creed, colour, ethnic or national origin, political or religious affiliation, nor by reason of her/his membership or non-membership or activity in the Union.
- As set out in the Manitoba Human Rights Code, the Parties agree that there shall be no discrimination with respect to any aspect of employment or occupation, unless the discrimination is based upon bona fide and reasonable requirements or qualifications for the employment or occupation.
- 5:03 All pay and benefit provisions in the Agreement have been negotiated with the specific understanding that the provisions are not discriminatory.

Article 6 Management Rights

- 6:01 Except where expressly abridged, delegated, or modified by specific provisions of this Agreement, the Union expressly agrees and recognizes that the Employer has retained the sole and exclusive right, power and authority to manage its operations in all respects including, without limiting generality of the foregoing, the right to make, enforce and revise from time to time, rules, regulations, practices, procedures and policies to be observed by the Employees.
- 6:02 In administering this Agreement, the Employer shall act reasonably, fairly, in good faith, and in a manner consistent with the Agreement as a whole.

Article 7 Union Business

7:01 It is agreed that it is desirable to promote a harmonious working relationship between the parties. To this end, the Employer will make every possible effort to grant leave of absence to employees to attend Union business.

Leave of absence to attend to Union business may be granted to employees under the following conditions:

- (a) Requests for leave shall be made in writing by the Union by providing the employee with a letter of request. The employee shall submit the letter to the employee's immediate supervisor. The Union will also provide a copy of the written request to the Director of Human Resources.
- (b) Where such leave of absence has been granted the Union shall reimburse the Employer for the associated wage and benefits costs.
- 7:02 For time spent with Employer representatives during negotiations of the Collective Agreement, the Union will be allowed to have two (2) employees present at each collective bargaining meeting without loss of pay.
- 7:03 Prior to the commencement of negotiations, the Union shall provide the names of the employee representatives. Dependent upon operational requirements, requested leave for such employees shall not be unreasonably denied.
- 7:04 Subject to the mutual agreement of the parties, the total number of employees referred to in Section 7:02 above may be changed provided any additional employees are on leave without pay or on a wage recovery basis in accordance with Section 7:01 (b).
- 7:05 Union staff members shall not visit employees at their place of work unless prior approval has been obtained from the employee's supervisor.
- 7:06 The Employer agrees to allow the Union use of space on existing bulletin boards for the purpose of posting official Union information relating to

business affairs, meetings, and social events provided the information does not contain anything that is adverse to the interests of the employer. The Executive Director or designate shall have the right to refuse to post or remove the posting of any information.

7:07 Upon request, a Union representative shall be provided with the opportunity to meet with newly hired employees for up to twenty (20) minutes during regular working hours. The time shall be established by agreement subject to operational requirements.

Article 8 Rights of Stewards

- 8:01 "Steward" means an employee elected or appointed by the Union who is authorized to represent the Union, an employee or both.
- 8:02 The Employer recognizes the Union's right to select stewards to represent employees.
- 8:03 The Union shall determine the number of stewards and the jurisdiction of each steward having regard to the plan of organization, the distribution of employees at the workplace, and the administrative structure implied by the grievance procedure.
- 8:04 The Union agrees to provide the Employer with a list of stewards and any subsequent changes.
- 8:05 The duties of the stewards shall be to investigate complaints of an urgent nature and to investigate and present grievances in accordance with the grievance procedure.
- 8:06 For complaints of an urgent nature, a steward shall first obtain the permission of the steward's immediate supervisor or in the absence of the immediate supervisor, the Director of Service before leaving work to investigate such complaint. Such permission shall not be unreasonably sought or withheld. On resuming the steward's normal duties, the steward shall notify the steward's supervisor.

- 8:07 When it is necessary for a steward to investigate a complaint or grievance during working hours, no deduction in salary shall be made from the steward or employee concerned, provided that each has obtained approval from their supervisor(s) or Director of Service for the time required to deal with the complaint or grievance. On resuming their duties, the steward and employee shall notify their supervisor(s) or Director of Service.
- 8:08 Stewards and employees shall not conduct Union business during their working time except as provided in Section 8:07.

Article 9 Union Security

- 9:01 During the term of this Agreement, employees covered by this Agreement, whether members of the Union or not, shall pay to the Union, by payroll deduction, an amount equal to the bi-weekly membership dues determined by the Union. For new employees, the payroll deduction of the amount as set out above shall become effective on the first day of the bi-weekly pay period, following the date the employee is covered under the terms of this Agreement.
- **9:02** The Employer shall forward to the Union the amount of the dues deducted under Section 9:01 above on a bi-weekly basis.
- 9:03 The Employer shall provide the Union on a bi-weekly basis, the names of the employees from whose wages dues have been deducted showing opposite each employee's names', the amount of dues deducted for that employee.
- 9:04 The Union agrees to indemnify and save the Employer harmless against any claim or liability arising out of the application of this Article except for any claim or liability arising out of an error committed by the Employer.
- 9:05 Notwithstanding any other provision in the Agreement, the Employer shall, no later than ninety (90) days preceding the expiry date of this Agreement, furnish in written form to the Union the following, shown by classification groupings:

- (a) The name of each Employee;
- (b) The classification of each Employee; and
- (c) The current rate of pay of each Employee.

Article 10 Joint Labour Management Committee

- 10:01 The Employer and the Union agree to the formation of a Joint Labour Management Committee in order that matters of a mutual concern can be discussed.
 - (a) The Committee shall establish terms of reference governing frequency of meetings, designation of Committee chairpersons and other such matters as may be required for the Committee to conduct its business.
 - (b) The Committee shall not have jurisdiction over any matter of collective bargaining, or the administration of this Collective Agreement.
 - (c) The Committee shall not have the power to bind either the Union, the employees, or the Employer to any decisions or conclusions reached in their discussions.
 - (d) The Union shall appoint up to three (3) members from the bargaining unit as members of the Joint Labour Management Committee. The employees will not suffer any loss of pay for attendance at Joint Labour Management Committee meetings.
 - (e) The Employer shall appoint up to three (3) management members to the Joint Labour Management Committee.
 - (f) Alternate members may attend should it be necessary.
 - (g) The MGEU Staff Representative, as well as the Human Resource Director will be standing committee members, in addition to the members from management and the bargaining unit.

Article 11 Recruitment and Appointment

- 11:01 First consideration for filling vacancies or new positions shall be given to persons on the re-employment list.
- Indigenous employees provide care and services to Indigenous children and families. If two (2) or more applicants for a vacant or new position possess relatively equal qualifications, ability, prior work performance, competencies developed for the position then, consistent with Section 11 and other relevant provisions of the Human Rights Code, the Employer may from among those applicants select a candidate who is Indigenous. If two (2) or more applicants for a vacancy or job posting possess relatively equal skill, ability, expertise and qualifications, and are Indigenous, and the Employer intends to select one (1) of the two (2) Indigenous applicants for the vacancy or posting, then the Indigenous applicant with the greatest amount of seniority shall be selected for the position.
- 11:03 Vacant or new positions in the bargaining unit shall be filled by promotion when internal candidates possess the qualifications, abilities, and prior work performance relevant to the vacant or new position and having regard to the provisions in Section 11:02.
- 11:04 Where a vacant or new position is to be filled through competition, both an internal and an external bulletin shall be posted simultaneously for a minimum of five (5) working days. At the time of posting, the Union shall be provided with a copy of all bulletins.
- 11:05 The bulletin shall state the closing date for applications, the classification, the duties and responsibilities of the position, the qualifications required and the salary range. The Union will be provided with a copy of all bulletins as they are issued.
- 11:06 The selection of employees for a vacancy shall be on the basis of qualifications, ability, prior work performance, competencies developed for the position and seniority. Where qualification, ability and prior work

- performance are relatively equal, seniority shall be the determining factor. Internal applicants shall be given preference over external candidates.
- 11:07 When a term position is posted to replace an employee who is taking Maternity or Parental Leave the job posting shall state that the term position is a 'Maternity or Parental leave of absence term position' which may expire sooner than indicated, subject to minimum notice of two (2) weeks.
- 11:08 An employee who is notified that she/he is an unsuccessful applicant for a vacant position shall be supplied with the reasons for non-acceptance in writing within ten (10) days of making a written request to Human Resources. Such a request shall be made within ten (10) days of receipt of the notification that the employee was an unsuccessful applicant.
- 11:09 A regular employee may apply for and be appointed to a term position provided that an employment plan is developed which will return the employee to the employee's former position or a comparable position.

Article 12 Probationary Period and Trial Period

- 12:01 A newly hired employee shall be on probation for a period of six (6) months.
- 12:02 An employee's probation period may be extended by the Employer. Such extension may be for a maximum of three (3) months.
- 12:03 An employee shall be notified in writing of any extension of the probation period under Section 12:02 prior to the expiry of the initial probation period. A meeting may be held with the employee to discuss the extension. The employee has the right to have a Union representative present.
- 12:04 A probationary employee may be terminated without recourse to the grievance procedure.
- 12:05 All promotions and transfers to a different department are subject to a three (3) month trial period which may be extended up to an additional three (3) months at the Employer's discretion. The Union shall be notified of an extension to the trial period. During the trial period, the employee may

choose to revert to her/his former position, if available. Should the Employer conclude that the employee has not successfully concluded the trial period the employee will be returned to her/his former position, if available, and if the former position is not available, the employee will be placed in a position comparable to the former position. The employee shall return to the same rate of pay prior to the promotion or transfer.

- 12:06 An employee shall not be required to serve a trial period when:
 - (a) The employee's position is reclassified to a higher level;
 - (b) The employee applies for a posted position and receives a transfer to a position in the same classification in the same department;
 - (c) The employee is demoted.
- 12:07 A decision that an employee has not successfully concluded the trial period is grievable. The decision at Step 2 shall be final and not subject to Arbitration.
- 12:08 An employee who is temporarily appointed to another position on an acting status basis is not considered to be on a trial period. If the employee is subsequently promoted to that position, the period during which the employee was in acting status does not count towards the employee's trial period.

Article 13 Term Employees

- 13:01 "Term Employee" means an employee hired for a specific term of employment. The term of employment may be based on a specific period of time or the completion of a project.
- 13:02 Where the employment of a term employee terminates at the end of a specific term of employment:
 - (a) The Employer shall not be required to give any notice or payment in lieu thereof.
 - (b) The Employee shall not be required to give any notice of resignation.

- 13:03 Where a term employee is employed in the same position performing the same function for a period of more than twenty-four (24) continuous months and where the need for the position is expected to continue, the Employer will convert the employee to regular employment status. Should the Employer not convert the employee to regular employment status, the employee shall be notified in writing prior to completion of twenty-four (24) continuous months.
- 13:04 An employee appointed to a term position shall be informed in writing as to the duration of the term.

Article 14 Hours of Work

- 14:01 Full-time employees shall work seven and one-half (7.5) consecutive hours per work day inclusive of one (1) thirty (30) minute unpaid meal period and one (1) thirty (30) minute paid meal period. Normal office hours shall be 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday to Friday. This shall not preclude the Employer from requiring Employees to work outside of these hours based on service needs. Should the Employer require a change in the normal office hours, meaningful consultation with the affected employees and the Union shall occur prior to implementation.
- 14:02 Any variations to a work day or work week other than those described in this Article shall only be instituted with the mutual agreement of the parties.
- 14:03 Employees will be entitled to two (2) paid rest periods of fifteen (15) minutes each per day, at such time as may be specified by a supervisor or designate. Failure to take a rest period(s) shall not result in the employee being permitted to leave work early.
- 14:04 Where an employee requires an accommodation as contemplated in the Manitoba Human Rights Code of her/his regular hours of work, the employee may request a variation and the Employer may consider the request. Any change to the employee's regular hours of work shall only be

instituted upon the mutual agreement of the employee and Employer, and shall be documented in writing and reviewed periodically.

Article 15 Pay

- 15:01 Employees shall be paid on a bi-weekly basis in accordance with Schedule A. Where an Employee does not work a full period, the calculations of earnings shall be based on the hourly rate multiplied by the number of hours worked. Employees shall also be paid for any Holiday for which they are eligible as well as any approved leaves with pay falling within the pay period.
- 15:02 (a) Except as provided in Section 15:02 (b), where an employee is promoted the employee shall be paid at the rate of pay set out for that position in the salary schedule that is next higher to the employee's current salary placement.
 - (b) Where an employee is promoted and is within six (6) months of her/his anniversary date, the employee shall be paid at a rate of pay that is one full increment more than the rate of pay the employee was being paid in the former position.

Article 16 Merit Increases

- 16:01 "Merit Increase" means an increase in the rate of pay of an employee within the employee's classification which will be granted in recognition of satisfactory performance and the increase shall be effective on the employee's anniversary date, or as altered by the terms of this Agreement, the latter of which shall take precedence.
- 16:02 An employee shall be notified in writing of a decision to withhold a merit increase on or before the applicable anniversary date together with the reasons for withholding the merit increase. Where written notice has not been provided to the employee on or before the anniversary date, the merit increase shall automatically be awarded. Where an increment is withheld following completion of a performance

- appraisal in accordance with Article 43 the Employer will conduct a further performance appraisal within six (6) months.
- 16:03 The anniversary date for an employee who is promoted shall change to the effective date that the promotion occurs and the employee shall be eligible for the next merit increase twelve (12) months from the new anniversary date established.
- 16:04 A part-time employee will be eligible for a merit increase upon the completion of the equivalent full time hours of work (1950 hours).
- 16:05 Where an employee has been on maternity leave and/or parental leave and as a result of such leave(s) fails to be eligible for a merit increase, the employee will be eligible for a merit increase upon the completion of the equivalent full time hours of work (1950 hours).
- **16:06** Increments will not be delayed due to an unpaid leave of absence of four (4) weeks or less.

Article 17 Retroactivity

- 17:01 If applicable, retroactive pay adjustments for the period between the expiration of this Agreement and the date of the signing of a new Agreement shall apply to:
 - (a) Employees who are employed on the date of the signing of this Agreement;
 - (b) Employees who have retired during this period
 - (c) Employees who have died during this period with such amount being payable to the employees' estate;
 - (d) Employees who were on lay-off during this period;
 - (e) Term employees whose position ended during this period.

17:02 If applicable, retroactive pay adjustments for the period between the expiration of the previous Agreement and the date of signing of the new Agreement shall be made to employees who have resigned. Former employees are required to make written application to the Employer no later than ninety (90) calendar days after the date of signing of the Agreement. The Employer shall at the time of ratification send a communication to the former employees providing notification of the retroactivity. This communication shall be sent to each employee's last known home address.

Article 18 Overtime

Section 18:01 through 18:06 are applicable to all classifications except Supervisors.

- 18:01 All overtime must be authorized by a supervisory official in advance. In the event of an unanticipated child protection or program emergency, that cannot be managed by a Provincially designated intake agency, the employee will notify her/his immediate supervisor for approval of the overtime.
- **18:02** A supervisory official may require employees under his or her authority to work overtime.
- 18:03 An employee who is required to work overtime on a regular work day is entitled to compensation at the rate of time and one-half (1½x) for all overtime worked.
- 18:04 An employee who is required by the Employer to work on a day of rest is entitled to compensation at time and one-half (1½x) for the first four (4) hours of overtime on that day and double time (2x) for any hours worked thereafter.
- 18:05 (a) Overtime Credits may be banked to a maximum of thirty seven and one half (37.5) hours. Any hours accrued in excess of the thirty seven and one half (37.5) hours bank shall be in accordance with (b).
 - (b) An employee who has reached the maximum of the overtime bank in (a) and who works additional overtime shall be required to take

compensatory time off within eight (8) weeks of working the overtime. In the event the employee has not taken the compensatory time off within eight (8) weeks, the Employer will schedule, in the subsequent three (3) weeks, the banked time off.

- 18:06 When an employee is consulted outside his/her regular working hours and is authorized to handle bona fide work related matters without returning to the workplace, the following shall apply:
 - (a) An employee who has completed her regular daily or bi-weekly hours of work shall be paid at the applicable overtime rate of a minimum of fifteen (15) minutes or actual time worked whichever is greater for each consultation logged.
 - (b) Employees consulted outside of their regular working hours shall document all communications received and shall submit a log of all such communications to their supervisor for processing.
- 18:07 Supervisors shall be entitled to ten (10) working days (75 hours) time off per fiscal year in recognition of additional time worked to discharge their responsibilities. In the first year of employment, a newly hired Supervisor shall receive a pro-rated amount from date of hire. Such time off may not be carried over to the next fiscal year.

Article 19 Holidays

19:01 (a) The following holidays shall be observed:

New Year's Day

Terry Fox Day

Louis Riel Day Labour Day

Good Friday National Truth & Reconciliation Day

Easter Monday Thanksgiving Day

Victoria Day Remembrance Day

Canada Day Christmas Day

Boxing Day

And any other holiday proclaimed by Federal or Provincial authority.

When a holiday falls on a weekend the following shall apply.

- (i) When a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the holiday shall be observed on the following Monday;
 - (ii) When Christmas Day and Boxing Day fall on both Saturday and Sunday, the holidays shall be observed on the following Monday and Tuesday.
- (b) The following holidays shall be observed contingent on coverage being provided by All Nations Coordinated Response Network (ANCR), the designated intake agency:

Aboriginal Justice Day

National Aboriginal Day

Aboriginal Veterans Day

Should any of these days fall during a week day and ANCR is not able to provide coverage, service staff will be required to attend to work as a normal work day.

- 19:02 When December 24 falls on a Monday through Friday, the following shall apply:
 - (a) Offices may be closed at 1:00 p.m. or operated at reduced staffing levels after 1:00 p.m. at the sole discretion of the Employer and provided services to the public are not affected,
 - (b) Where the Employer requires an employee to work a full shift, the employee shall be entitled to one-half (½) day of compensatory leave to a maximum of four (4) hours at straight time pay.

- (c) The day shall be considered a full working day for calculation purposes. Example: an employee on vacation will be deducted one (1) day vacation credit for the day.
- 19:03 An employee is entitled to regular pay for a holiday on which the employee does not work provided the employee:
 - (a) Did not fail to report for work after having been scheduled to work on the day of the holiday; and has not absented herself/himself from work without the consent of the Employer.
 - (b) Works on the regular working day immediately preceding and following the holiday unless the absence is by reason of established illness.
- 19:04 An employee who is entitled to pay for a holiday and who is required to work on the holiday, in addition to regular pay, shall be compensated at the rate of time and one-half (1½x) for all regular hours worked on the holiday, or be granted compensatory leave for such hours worked at the rate of one and one-half (1½x) hours for each hour worked.
- 19:05 In the event that an employee resigns or is terminated, the accumulated compensatory leave in lieu of having worked on a holiday, shall be paid out at the employee's rate at the time of resignation or termination.
- 19:06 Where a holiday falls within the vacation period of an employee, one (1) additional working day shall be added to the employee's vacation entitlement.
- 19:07 Effective the pay period following date of ratification of the collective agreement part-time employees and casual employees will be paid five-point-seven-six (5.76%) percent of their basic pay in lieu of time off on holidays. Such holiday pay shall be calculated on all paid hours, excluding overtime, and shall be included in each bi-weekly pay.

Article 20 Indigenous Cultural Awareness and/or Training

20:01 Non-probationary regular employees shall be entitled to apply, in writing, for a leave of absence with pay at least thirty (30) days in advance to participate in Indigenous cultural awareness and/or training. Permission for such leave of absence shall be at the discretion of the Director of Services or Executive Director. Up to three (3) paid days per fiscal year may be approved to participate in Indigenous cultural awareness and/or training. If an employee requires additional time to participate, the employee may request to use vacation leave, personal time, banked overtime or leave without pay. Approval is subject to operational requirements. Such time does not carryover to the following fiscal year.

Article 21 Vacation

- 21:01 For purposes of this Agreement, a vacation year is the period beginning on April 1 and ending on March 31 of the next year.
- 21:02 Vacation leave credits are calculated based on accumulated service. In addition, for purposes of calculation of vacation credits only, an employee shall be considered to have earned accumulated service in accordance with the following:
 - (a) Where an employee is absent due to an injury or disability for which compensation is paid under The Workers Compensation Act, vacation leave shall accumulate as if the employee were not absent, but the extent of such accumulation shall not continue beyond twelve (12) consecutive months from the date the injury or disability occurred.
- **21:03** Employees shall not earn vacation while on Maternity leave, Parental Leave or Compassionate Care Leave.
- 21:04 An employee cannot earn more than the maximum vacation credits that can be accumulated in any vacation year; i.e. fifteen (15), twenty (20), twenty-five (25) or thirty (30) vacation credits per vacation year.

- 21:05 Regular employees shall earn vacation leave credits during each vacation year on the following basis:
 - (a) After one (1) year of service, three (3) weeks annual leave credits shall be calculated at 1.25 days for each calendar month worked.
 - (b) After two (2) years of service, four (4) weeks annual leave credits shall be calculated at 1.67 days for each calendar month worked
 - (c) After nine (9) years of service, five (5) weeks annual leave credits shall be calculated at 2.09 days for each calendar month worked. **Effective April** 1, 2023, after eight (8) years of service, five (5) weeks annual leave credits shall be calculated at 2.09 days for each calendar month worked.
 - (d) After nineteen (19) years of service, six (6) weeks annual leave credits shall be calculated at 2.51 days for each calendar month worked.

 Effective April 1, 2023, after eighteen (18) years of service, six (6) weeks annual leave credits shall be calculated at 2.51 days for each calendar month worked.

Employees who leave the employ of the Employer prior to the completion of twelve (12) months of continuous service will be paid vacation pay at a rate of 4% of earnings.

Casual employees shall be paid four percent (4%) vacation pay based on the employee's regular earnings in each bi-weekly pay period. Term employees shall be paid six (6%) percent based on the employee's earnings in each bi-weekly pay period.

- 21:06 An employee shall accumulate vacation credits from the date of commencement of employment.
- 21:07 (a) Except as provided for in Section 21:07 (e) vacation leave shall be taken in the vacation year following the vacation year in which it is earned.
 - (b) Under no circumstances shall vacation leave be taken in advance of when it was earned.

- (c) Where operational requirements permit, vacation leave may be taken subject to the approval of the Employer.
- (d) The Employer may authorize vacation to commence on any day.
- (e) The Employer may authorize vacation leave to be carried forward to the next following year to supplement the vacation period in that year, to a maximum of ten (10) work days.
- (f) The Employer, if it finds it necessary due to operational requirements, may require an employee to take vacation leave in two (2) or more periods.
- (g) Vacation leave shall be rotated regardless of seniority.
- 21:08 Should an employee's current annual vacation entitlement not be scheduled, the Employer has the right to schedule the vacation prior to the end of the vacation year.
- 21:09 Where an employee dies, the employee's estate shall receive the employee's monetary equivalent of the employees' accumulated vacation credits.
- 21:10 An employee who is in their first year of employment may elect to use accrued vacation credits to a maximum amount of five (5) days prior to the start of the next vacation year.

Article 22 Sick Leave

- **22:01** Earned sick leave entitlement shall be granted by the Employer where an employee is unable to be at work and perform the employee's regular duties as a result of illness or injury.
- **22:02** The sick leave to which an employee is entitled shall accumulate:
 - (a) Full time permanent employees accumulate sick leave credits at a rate of 1.25 days per month to a maximum of ninety (90) working days.

(b) Part time permanent employees accumulate sick leave credits on a prorata basis on a maximum of ninety (90) working days.

Term employees shall accumulate sick leave credits in accordance with (a) and (b) above.

- 22:03 Sick leave shall not accumulate during periods when an employee is:
 - (a) On sick leave for a period of more than fifteen (15) consecutive working days;
 - (b) On maternity leave, parental leave, or unpaid educational leave.
 - (c) On Workers Compensation for a period of more than fifteen (15) consecutive working days.
 - (d) On an unpaid leave of absence in excess of thirty-seven and one half hours (37.5) in the fiscal year.
- 22:04 Any employee who, for any reason, resigns or whose employment is terminated shall not be entitled to payment for sick leave days accumulated.
- 22:05 Where an employee is to be absent because of illness, the employee shall notify the employee's immediate supervisor and Reception of the absence no later than thirty (30) minutes after the normal start time, or as soon as reasonably possible in emergency circumstances.
- 22:06 An employee who has been absent because of sickness for a period of three (3) working days or more may be required to furnish a medical certificate from a qualified medical practitioner or nurse practitioner at the employee's expense.
- 22:07 When an employee is unable to work and is in receipt of an Income Replacement Indemnity (IRI) from the Manitoba Public Insurance (MPI) as a result of an injury incurred in a vehicle accident, the employee may elect to be paid an additional amount, which when combined with the IRI benefit, shall ensure the maintenance of net salary consistent as if they were in receipt of regular sick leave. Such additional amounts shall be chargeable to the

- employee's sick leave credits accrued at the time the employee commenced receipt of the IRI and such additional payment shall be payable until the employee's accrued sick leave credits have been exhausted.
- 22:08 Time off without loss of pay for medical and dental examinations or treatments, Employee Assistance Program (EAP) appointments, Mental Health Practitioner, Chiropractor, Physiotherapist, Nurse Practitioner and Acupuncturist including reasonable travel time, shall be granted to employees to a maximum of two (2) hours per appointment and to a maximum of two (2) appointments per month. Should an employee be required to attend more than two (2) appointments in a month she/he may utilize sick leave credits to attend the appointment(s). Whenever possible, appointments are to be made on the employee's day off or at a time when the employee is not on duty. If the above is not possible, the employee will endeavor to make the appointment at a time which is least disruptive to the operational requirements of the Employer.
- **22:09** Sick Leave is credited to an employee's sick leave bank on the first day of the following month.
- **22:10** Sick Leave credits cannot be taken prior to being earned.
- 22:11 Where an Employee has exhausted all his or her accrued sick leave and requires additional sick leave, the Employee may use his or her vacation leave, and/or banked time. Where an Employee has no vacation leave or banked time remaining, the Employee may be provided the time off without pay.
- When an Employee is injured in the course of, or as a result of, his or her duties and whose accommodation results in a lower classification the Employee shall have his or her wages protected for a six (6) continuous month period.
- An employee who is hospitalized due to accident or illness while on scheduled vacation may utilize sick leave credits to cover the hospitalization and/or post-hospitalization period. The displaced vacation shall be rescheduled at a time mutually agreed between the

- employee and the Employer within the available time periods remaining during that vacation year. Proof of such hospitalization and post-hospitalization period shall be provided upon request.
- An employee who is in the first six (6) months of employment may be advanced up to five (5) days sick leave. In the event there is a termination of employment for any reason prior to earning the advanced sick time, the Employer may deduct the requisite amount from the employee's final pay.

Article 23 Addictions

23:01 The Employer recognizes that gambling, alcohol and drug misuse does occur and that such misuse has the potential to adversely affect an employee's work performance. Subject to approval of the Executive Director, an employee will be granted accrued sick leave to pursue treatment that involves time away from work for participation in inpatient or outpatient treatment.

Article 24 Medical Fitness

24:01 The Employer may require a certificate or report from a qualified medical practitioner as proof of the employee's fitness to return to work or to determine the approximate length of illness or as proof of illness in regard to any claim paid during the period of illness. In the event there is a fee associated with a report requested the Employer will pay for the report to a maximum of two hundred fifty dollars (\$250.00).

Article 25 Workers Compensation

- 25:01 If an employee is absent from work as a result of an injury for which a Workers Compensation claim has been filed and provided the employee has sufficient accumulated leave credits, the following shall apply:
 - (a) The employee will continue to be paid as if she/he was present at work and;

- (b) Any amounts payable to the employee from Workers Compensation shall be remitted directly to the Employer.
- 25:02 In the event the Workers Compensation claim is not approved, the employee's sick bank will be reduced equivalent to the amount paid to the employee under Section 25:01 (a). In the event there are insufficient sick leave credits, the employee may utilize credits such as banked overtime, unutilized vacation or personal leave days.
- 25:03 Where an employee is injured on the job and is required to leave for medical treatment and/or is sent home due to the injury, the employee shall incur no loss in regular pay and benefits for the day on which the accident occurs.
- 25:04 Transportation to the nearest physician or hospital for employees requiring immediate medical care as a result of an on-the-job accident shall be provided by or at the expense of the Employer if it is not covered by a medical plan.
- 25:05 Where an employee is in receipt of Workers Compensation as a result of an injury incurred in the course of the performance of the employee's duties and is absent from work as a result, such absence shall not be considered to be part of the employee's personal absenteeism record.

Article 26 Bereavement Leave

- A non-probationary employee shall be entitled to be reavement leave of five (5) working days without loss of salary in the event of the death of the employee's spouse, common-law partner, child, step child, mother, father, brother, sister, foster parent, foster child, grand parent, grand child.
- A non-probationary employee shall be entitled to bereavement leave of three (3) working days without loss of salary in the event of the death of an aunt, uncle, cousin, nephew, niece, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law.
- 26:03 A non-probationary employee shall be entitled to additional leave up to a maximum of two (2) days without loss of salary, requested for the purpose of

- attending a funeral at a distance in excess of two hundred twenty-five (225) kilometres from the employee's home.
- 26:04 Provided an employee has not received bereavement leave for the death in question the employee shall, subject to operational requirements, be entitled to bereavement leave up to a maximum of one (1) day without loss of salary for attending a funeral:
 - (a) As a pallbearer; or
 - (b) As a mourner. The provision for a mourner can only be utilized once per calendar year.
- 26:05 An employee who is entitled to bereavement leave under Articles 26:01, 26:02, 26:03 and 26:04 during vacation leave shall receive vacation credits equal to the number of days of bereavement leave granted.

Article 27 Personal Leave

- 27:01 The Employer recognizes that there are instances where employees may not be able to attend work for reason other than employee illness. Personal leave is available to non-probationary regular and term employees in accordance with Article 27:02.
- 27:02 Three working days (22.5 hours), effective July 1, 2023, five (5) working days (37.5 hours), of Personal Leave (pro-rata for part-time employees) can only be used in the current fiscal year.
- **27:03** Employees entitled to Personal Leave will be prorated dependent on start date.
- 27:04 The following conditions apply to employees who have met the probationary period and are eligible for personal time:
 - (a) Personal time cannot be used in conjunction with an employee's notice of resignation.

- (b) An employee who, for any reason, resigns or whose employment is terminated shall not be entitled to payment for personal time accumulated.
- (c) Personal time credits do not roll over to the next fiscal period.
- (d) Personal time shall not be taken in advance of the next year's entitlement.
- (e) Personal time shall be pre-approved by the employee's immediate supervisor.
- (f) Personal time may be used in conjunction with vacation leave and/or banked time.
- (g) Upon the return from any extended leave period or successfully completing the probationary period, personal time will be prorated to the end of the fiscal year.

Article 28 Critical Illness Leave

28:01 <u>Critical Illness Leave - Adult:</u>

- (a) An employee who has been employed for at least ninety (90) days is entitled to leave without pay of up to seventeen (17) weeks to provide care or support to a critically ill family member of the employee.
- (b) An employee may end the leave earlier than the expiry of seventeen (17) weeks by providing one (1) pay period of notice of her/his expected date of return unless the employee and Employer agree, in writing, to lesser notice.

28:02 <u>Critical Illness Leave- Child:</u>

(a) An employee who has been employed for at least thirty (30) days is entitled to leave without pay for up to thirty-seven (37) weeks to provide care or support to a critically ill child who is a family member of the employee.

- (b) An employee may end the leave earlier than the expiry of thirty-seven (37) weeks by providing one (1) pay period of notice of her/his expected date of return unless the employee and Employer agree, in writing, to lesser notice.
- **28:03** For an employee to be eligible for a leave, a physician must issue a certificate:
 - (a) Stating that the child or adult is a critically ill child or a critically ill adult and requires the care or support of the employee; and,
 - (b) Setting out the period during which the child or adult requires that care or support.
- **28:04 Critical Illness** Leave may be taken in one (1) or more periods, but no period may be less than one (1) week's duration. A leave must end no later than fifty-two (52) weeks after the day the first period of leave began.
- 28:05 If a child or adult in respect of whom an Employee has taken a leave under this section remains critically ill after the fifty-two (52) week period, the employee can take the leave again, and the eligibility requirements remain the same.
- **28:06** A family member for the purpose of this Article shall be defined as:
 - (i) A spouse or common-law partner of the employee.
 - (ii) A child of the employee or a child of the employee's spouse or common-law partner.
 - (iii) A parent of the employee or a parent of the employee's spouse or common-law partner.
 - (iv) A brother, sister, step-brother, step-sister, uncle, aunt, nephew, niece, grandchild or grandparent of the employee or of the employee's spouse or common-law partner.
 - (v) A current or former foster parent of the employee or of the employee's spouse or common-law partner.

- (vi) A current or former foster child, ward or guardian of the employee, or of the employee's spouse or common-law partner.
- (vii) The spouse or common-law partner of a person mentioned in any of the clauses (iii), (iv), and (v) (vi).
- (viii) Any other person whom the employee considers to be like a close relative, whether or not they are related by blood, adoption, marriage or common-law relationship.

Article 29 Compassionate Care Leave

- 29:01 An employee who has been employed for at least ninety (90) days is entitled to unpaid compassionate care leave of up to twenty-eight (28) weeks to provide support to a seriously ill family member.
- 29:02 An employee may take two (2) periods of leave totaling no more than twenty-eight (28) weeks, which must end no later than fifty-two (52) weeks after the day the first period of leave began.
- 29:03 For an employee to be eligible for leave, a physician must issue a certificate stating that:
 - (a) A family member of the employee has a serious medical condition with a significant risk of death within twenty-six (26) weeks from:
 - (i) The day the certificate is issued, or
 - (ii) If the leave has begun before the certificate was issued, the day the leave began; and
 - (b) The family member requires the care or support of one or more family members.
- 29:04 A leave under this section may be taken after the twenty-six (26) week period set out in the physician's certificate, and no additional certificate is required.

- 29:05 An employee who wishes to take leave under this section must provide notice of at least one (1) pay period, unless circumstances necessitate a shorter period.
- 29:06 The employee must provide a copy of the physician's certificate as soon as possible.
- 29:07 No period of leave may be less than one (1) week's duration.
- 29:08 Unless the employee and the Employer agree otherwise, an employee may end a leave earlier than the expiry of twenty-eight (28) weeks by providing at least forty-eight (48) hours' notice of their expected date of return.
- 29:09 A family member for the purpose of this Article shall be defined as:
 - (i) A spouse or common-law partner of the employee.
 - (ii) A child of the employee or a child of the employee's spouse or common-law partner.
 - (iii) A parent of the employee or a parent of the employee's spouse or common-law partner.
 - (iv) A brother, sister, step-brother, step-sister, uncle, aunt, nephew, niece, grandchild or grandparent of the employee or of the employee's spouse or common-law partner.
 - (v) A current or former foster parent of the employee or of the employee's spouse or common-law partner.
 - (vi) A current or former foster child, ward or guardian of the employee, or of the employee's spouse or common-law partner.
 - (vii) The spouse or common-law partner of a person mentioned in any of the clauses (c), (d), (e) and (f).

(viii) Any other person whom the employee considers to be like a close relative, whether or not they are related by blood, adoption, marriage or common-law relationship.

Article 30 Interpersonal Violence Leave

- 30:01 An employee is eligible for Interpersonal Violence Leave for any of the following purposes:
 - (a) To seek medical attention for the employee or the employee's child in respect of a physical or psychological injury or disability caused by interpersonal violence;
 - (b) To obtain services from a victim services organization;
 - (c) To obtain psychological or other professional counselling;
 - (d) To relocate temporarily or permanently;
 - (e) To seek legal or law enforcement assistance, including preparing for or participating in any civil or criminal legal proceeding related to or resulting from the interpersonal violence;
 - (f) Any other purpose.
- 30:02 An employee who has been employed for at least ninety (90) days is entitled to the following leave in a fifty-two (52) week period:
 - (a) Leave of up to ten (10) days, which the employee may choose to take intermittently or in one continuous period;
 - (b) Leave of up to seventeen (17) weeks to be taken in one continuous period;
 - (c) Employees are entitled to be paid for up to five (5) days of interpersonal violence leave in a fifty-two (52) week period. It is the employee's responsibility to notify the Employer of the days to

- be paid. An employee can take (a) or (b) in any order that meets their individual circumstances.
- (d) The Employer shall pay the employee their regular salary for the interpersonal violence leave days in (c) above.
- (e) Employees whose regular hours of work or wages vary are entitled to be paid five (5) percent of their regular wages in the four (4) weeks immediately prior to the day of the leave.
- (f) Upon requesting leave under this Article, the Employer may request the employee to provide reasonable verification of the necessity of the leave.
- (g) Employees must be returned to the position the employee occupied when the leave began or to a comparable position, with no less than the pay and benefits the employee earned immediately prior to the leave.

Article 31 Maternity Leave

- 31:01 In order to qualify for Maternity Leave, a pregnant employee must:
 - (a) Have completed seven (7) continuous months of employment for or with AOCFS;
 - (b) Submit to the Employer an application in writing at least four (4) weeks before the day specified by her in the application as the day on which she intends to commence such leave; and
 - (c) Provide the Employer with a certificate of a duly qualified medical practitioner certifying that she is pregnant and specifying the estimated date of her delivery.
- 31:02 An employee who qualifies is entitled to and shall be granted maternity leave without pay consisting of:

- (a) A period not exceeding seventeen (17) weeks if delivery occurs on or before the date of delivery specified in the certificate mentioned in Section 29:01; or
- (b) A period of seventeen (17) weeks plus an additional period equal to the period between the date of delivery specified in the certificate mentioned in Section 29:01 and the actual date of delivery, if delivery occurs after the date mentioned in that certificate.
- (c) AOCFS may vary the length of maternity leave upon proper certification by the attending physician, and recommendation by the Employer.
- 31:03 An employee may end maternity leave earlier than the expiry date by providing written notice of at least two (2) weeks before returning to work.
- 31:04 Upon return, the employee will be reinstated in their former or comparable position.

Article 32 Parental Leave

- **32:01** In order to qualify for parental leave, an employee must:
 - (a) Be the natural mother of a child; or
 - (b) Be the natural father of a child; or
 - (c) Adopt a child under the law of a province; or
 - (d) Be a partner in a same sex relationship who assumes care and custody of a child.
- **32:02** An employee who qualifies under Section 30:01 must:
 - (a) Have completed seven (7) continuous months of employment; and
 - (b) Except in the case of parental leave due to adoption of a child, submit to the Employer an application in writing for parental leave at least four (4) weeks before the day specified in the application as the day on which the employee intends to commence the leave.

- (c) In the case of leave due to adoption, provide one (1) day of notice provided that application for such leave is made at the time the adoption is approved.
- 32:03 Parental Leave of up to sixty three (63) weeks may continue after the Maternity Leave with the total duration of the Maternity and Parental Leaves not to exceed eighty (80) weeks. Upon return, the employee will be reinstated in their former or comparable position.
- 32:04 Subject to Section 30:05, parental leave must commence no later than the first anniversary date of the birth or adoption of the child or the date on which the child comes into the actual care and custody of the employee.
- 32:05 Where an employee takes parental leave in addition to maternity leave, the employee must commence the parental leave immediately on expiry of the maternity leave without a return to work unless otherwise approved by the Employer.
- 32:06 An employee may end Parental Leave earlier than the expiry date by providing written notice of at least two (2) weeks before the day the employee elects to end the leave.

Article 33 Court Leave

33:01 An employee who is summoned for jury duty or who receives a summons or subpoena to appear as a witness in a court proceeding, other than a court proceeding occasioned by the employee's private affairs, shall be granted a leave of absence with pay for the required period of absence and all witness fees received by the employee shall be remitted to the Employer.

Article 34 Employee Benefit Program

34:01 Upon an employee's successful completion of the probationary period, the Employer shall provide a Group Insurance Benefits Plan (Benefits Plan) for participation by employees, subject to the terms and conditions of the plan contract and shall include the following coverage:

- (a) Life Insurance
- (b) Accidental Death & Dismemberment (AD&D)
- (c) Long Term Disability (LTD)
- (d) Extended Health
- (e) Dental Health
- 34:02 Participation in the Benefits Plan by employees and access to any and all coverages shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Benefits Plan policy document and determination by the Benefits provider.
- 34:03 Premiums for the Benefits Plan shall be paid fifty percent (50%) by the employees and fifty percent (50%) by the Employer.
- 34:04 The Employer shall provide a Registered Pension Plan for eligible employees with the option to contribute at a rate of three percent (3%) or five percent (5%) of regular salary and the Employer shall match the contributions made by the employee. Employees shall have the option of voluntarily contributing more than three percent (3%) or five percent (5%), however any additional contributions will not be matched by the Employer.

Supervisors shall contribute at a rate of eight percent (8%) of regular salary and the Employer shall match the contribution made by the employee. An employee may elect to make voluntary pension contributions at any time to the pension plan, as long as total contributions do not exceed the limits specified under the Canadian Income Tax Act. Voluntary pension contributions are not matched by the Employer.

- 34:05 Participation in the Benefits Plan and Registered Pension Plan by eligible employees shall be mandatory.
- 34:06 An employee who will be on an unpaid leave of absence for any reason in excess of two (2) weeks may elect to pay the full cost of the premiums for the Life Insurance, Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D), Long Term Disability (LTD), Extended Health and Dental Plan, subject to the

approval of Canada Life (benefits administrator). LTD coverage will continue for thirty (30) days after the last day of pay.

An employee may elect to make voluntary pension contributions at any time to the pension plan, as per the pension plan policy. Voluntary pension contributions are not matched by the Employer.

34:07 Should consideration be given to changing the employee benefit provider during the life of this Agreement, the Employer will enter into consultation with the employees and the Union. The current level of benefits shall be maintained during the life of the Agreement.

34:08 Health Spending Account

Effective July 1, 2023, the Employer shall implement a Health Spending Account (HSA) of three hundred dollars (\$300) per employee. Part-time employees shall receive a prorated HSA. There is no carryover of HSA dollars from one year to the next, but the employee can carry forward claims for up to one (1) year. Employees will be required to file a claim in order to receive reimbursement. A balance remaining on an HSA in any year is not paid out. The plan shall use the Revenue Canada definition of "dependent". An employee may claim HSA eligible expenses for a dependent.

Article 35 Family Leave

35:01 Family Leave is available to non-probationary regular employees. Three (3) working days (22.5 hours) of Family Leave (pro-rata for part-time employees) can only be used in the current fiscal year. Family Leave is to be deducted from the employee's sick leave bank. The purpose of Family Leave is to attend to family responsibilities for a family member which are immediate, unavoidable and necessitate the employee's absence from work. The leave shall be for the purpose of providing care to a family member who is ill or requires the employee to accompany him or her to a medical appointment.

35:02 Should an employee require additional Family Leave, the amount of the leave will be applied against the employee's remaining vacation credits and/or banked time.

Article 36 Bridging Of Service

- A regular employee who resigns as a result of the employee's decision to raise a dependent child or children, and is re-employed, upon written notification to the Employer shall be credited with the length of service accumulated up to the time of resignation for the purposes of sick leave and long service vacation entitlement benefits as defined in this Agreement and based on seniority. The Employer shall provide a written statement of all entitlements upon resignation. The following conditions shall apply:
 - (a) The employee must have accumulated at least four (4) years of calendar service at the time of resigning.
 - (b) The resignation itself must indicate the reason for resigning.
 - (c) The break in service shall be for no longer than six (6) years, and during that time the employee must not have been engaged in remunerative employment for more than three (3) months.
 - (d) The previous length of service shall not be reinstated until successful completion of the probationary period.
 - (e) Upon successful completion of the probationary period, the employee will be credited with the accumulated sick leave credits at the time of the resignation.

Article 37 Safety and Health

37:01 The Employer and the Union recognize that safety, accident prevention and the preservation of health are of primary importance in all operations and these activities require the combined efforts of Employer, employees, and the Union.

- 37:02 The Employer will continue to provide its employees with safe working conditions, equipment and materials, and will make every reasonable effort to ensure that all reasonable precautions are taken.
- 37:03 The Union will make every reasonable effort to obtain the cooperation of each employee within the bargaining unit in the observation of all reasonable safety rules, practices and procedures.
- 37:04 Every employee shall take all reasonable precautions and follow all reasonable safety rules, practices and procedures in order to protect her/his safety and health and the safety and health of any other persons who may be affected by the employee's acts or omissions at work.
- 37:05 The parties recognize the importance of establishing a workplace Safety and Health Committee to enhance the ability of employees and managers to resolve health and safety concerns.
- 37:06 (a) The number of employee representatives shall be not less than two (2) or more than six (6). The number of management representatives may be less than or equal to the number of employee representatives on a committee.
 - (b) Each party shall elect or appoint its representatives to the committee freely and without interference.
 - (c) Committee members shall have a term of office of two (2) years and members are eligible for re-election or re-appointment.
 - (d) Committees shall have two (2) co-chairpersons, one (1) chosen by and from the management representatives and one (1) chosen by and from the employee representatives. The co-chairpersons shall alternate the function of chairing the meetings of the committee and may participate fully in the deliberations and discussions of the committee.
 - (e) Committees shall meet regularly at intervals to be determined by the committee but normally not less than once in each calendar quarter.

- (f) Except for the calling of special meetings, there shall be at least seventy-two (72) hours prior notice of the calling of committee meetings.
- (g) Efforts should be made to schedule committee meetings, functions or duties during the employees' work time but if this is not possible meetings may be held during an employee's off duty hours. Employee representatives who are members of the committee and who are scheduled to meet during off duty hours shall be compensated at straight time rates or at the employee's option be granted time off in lieu for time spent in such meetings, functions or duties.
- (h) The quorum for meetings shall consist of one-half (½) of the management members and one-half (½) of the employee members.
- (i) The Employer shall provide a prominent place where information relating to health and safety subjects may be posted. Information posted shall include:
 - (i) The names of all committee members and their terms of office;
 - (ii) The scheduled meeting dates of the committee;
 - (iii) The agenda for each meeting;
 - (iv) The minutes of the previous meeting; and
 - (v) Informational and educational materials which have specific relevance to the safety and health of employees.
- (j) Minutes of all committee meetings are required. Minutes shall consist of matters relating to the receipt and disposition of safety and health concerns. The minutes shall be signed by both chairpersons. Where there is disagreement as to the accuracy or content, either party may so note the disagreement and place their comments on the minutes prior to signing. When the minutes are signed by both co-chairpersons, the management co-chairperson shall retain the original for the records of the committee, forward a copy to the Workplace Safety and Health

- Branch, post a copy as provided in Subsection (i) above and forward a copy to members of the committee.
- (k) Any material addressed to the committee shall be distributed as soon as practicable by the person receiving same to the other committee members.
- **37:07** The objectives of Workplace Safety and Health Committees include:
 - (a) Assisting employees to identify, record, examine, evaluate and resolve health and safety concerns in the workplace;
 - (b) Developing practical procedures and conditions to help achieve Safety and Health in the workplace; and
 - (c) Promoting education and training programs to develop detailed knowledge of health and safety concerns and responsibilities in each individual workplace.
- 37:08 Where a supervisor knows that any condition exists at a workplace that is unusually dangerous to the safety or health of an employee, the supervisor shall not require or permit an employee to engage in, carry on or continue to work in that workplace under that condition.
- 37:09 (a) Where an employee has reason to believe, and does believe, that a condition exists that is dangerous to the employee's safety or health in the performance of the employee's work, the employee shall report that condition to the employee's supervisor.
 - (b) The supervisor upon being notified under (a) above shall inspect the condition with the employee and discuss the employee's reasons for believing the condition to be dangerous. Where there is a health and safety committee at the workplace, the co-chairpersons may be asked to participate.

- (c) If the employee is unsatisfied with the supervisor's decision or if the supervisor refuses to inspect the condition, the employee shall contact the Workplace Safety and Health Branch without delay.
- (d) If the employee refuses to work because of the employee's belief that the condition is dangerous, the employee will be temporarily reassigned to perform other work duties.
- 37:10 Where an employee has refused to perform work in accordance with Section 37:09 no other employee shall be assigned the particular work unless such employee is notified of the refusal and the reasons for the refusal.
- 37:11 Nothing in this Article prevents the doing of any work or thing that may be necessary in order to remedy the dangerous condition described in Sections 37:08 and 37:09.
- 37:12 Disciplinary action shall not be taken against an employee solely for the reason that the employee:
 - (a) Made a report under Section 37:09; and
 - (b) Refused to work or continue to work under the conditions described under Section 37:09 provided a safety and health officer has reported in writing that the employee had reasonable and probable grounds for believing that those conditions were dangerous to the employee's safety or health.
- 37:13 Where an employee willfully takes unfair advantage of the provisions described in Section 37:09, the employee may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including suspension or dismissal.

Article 38 Staff Investigation Procedure

General Procedure

38:01 The principles of justice and dignity shall be applied in the investigation and resolution, by the Employer, of an allegation of inappropriate behavior or

wrongdoing by an employee in order to ensure that the rights, responsibilities and obligations of all parties are respected.

- 38:02 When the employer receives an allegation of inappropriate behaviour or wrongdoing by an employee, whether internally or from an external agency, the following procedure shall apply:
 - (a) All investigations shall be timely and the employee under investigation shall be apprised of the status of the investigation on a regular basis, or at the request of the employee.
 - (b) A preliminary assessment of the situation will be conducted expeditiously by the Employer. Where practicable, the preliminary assessment will be conducted by the first level of supervision of the employee concerned and may also include the next higher level of supervision. Human Resources may also be involved in the preliminary assessment.
 - (c) The following factors should be reviewed to determine their applicability to the situation.
 - Risk Does the employee's presence in the workplace create concerns regarding the safety of employees or the security of the Employer's property? Are employees reluctant to work with the employee?
 - Competence Can the employee continue in the current work assignment?
 - Ethics- Does the behavior contravene the Manitoba College of Social Workers Code of Ethics or Agency Code of Conduct? Does the behavior jeopardize the duty of care to clients?
 - Employer's Business Interests Does the conduct present potential or real harm to the service provided by the Employer?
 - Type of Work Is the conduct directly related to the employee's current duties? Does the employee hold a position of trust?

- Reputation and Public Confidence Does the conduct potentially affect Employer's reputation with the general public and with clients?
- Employee's Role in the Organization An employee in a professional and/or supervisory position must demonstrate a higher standard of conduct than other employees.

38:03 Results of Preliminary Assessment

The Preliminary Assessment shall be conducted in a timely manner. The assessment findings shall be provided to the Executive Director or designate for review and action.

- (a) The Executive Director or designate, in consultation with Human Resources, shall determine if the employee is unable or unsuitable to perform the current duties. In many cases alterations can be made to the position to ensure there is no impact and allow the employee to work while a formal investigation is undertaken.
- (b) If alteration to the position is not possible, an alternative work assignment to other work that may be available and suitable for the employee may occur. Should this occur, compensation shall be at the employee's current rate of pay.
- (c) A leave of absence will be considered only when alternative work assignments have been thoroughly explored and determined to be unviable. Should there be no alternative work assignment, a leave of absence with pay will occur.
- 38:04 A formal investigation shall be conducted to determine the nature and extent of the alleged inappropriate behavior or wrongdoing, if any.
- 38:05 There is an expectation that all employees will fully cooperate with the Employer during the course of the investigation.
- 38:06 An employee's status should be reviewed on a regular basis during both the preliminary and formal investigation phases to determine whether

- circumstances have changed to warrant an alteration in the employee's employment or leave status.
- 38:07 All activities in the course of the assessment and investigation are to be held in confidence by those involved.

Article 39 Conduct of Employees

- 39:01 Each employee shall observe standards of behaviour consistent with the employee's function and role as an employee and in compliance with the Employer's established Code of Conduct and the terms of this Agreement.
- 39:02 Where an employee is absent without authorization, and without an explanation satisfactory to the Employer, for a period of five (5) consecutive working days, the employee shall be considered to have abandoned his or her position and shall be deemed to have been terminated on the last day on which the employee was present at work.
- 39:03 Where an employee is habitually late or is absent during working hours without authorization and fails to give satisfactory explanation for the lateness or absence, the Employer may take such disciplinary action, including suspension or dismissal, as is warranted.

Article 40 Disciplinary Action

- 40:01 An employee shall only be disciplined for just cause. A meeting may be held with an employee prior to making a determination to suspend or dismiss the employee. The employee has the right to have a Union representative present.
- 40:02 An employee has the right to have a Union representative present at any meeting which is disciplinary, or may result in discipline.
 - In addition to a Union representative, with the approval of the Employer, an employee will also be allowed to bring in an external support person (i.e. Elder, Spiritual Support).

- 40:03 Where a written report recommending disciplinary action is to be placed on an employee's file, the employee shall be given an opportunity to sign the report indicating it has been read. Upon signing the employee shall receive a copy of such a report.
- **40:04** Where disciplinary action is taken the employee shall be advised in writing of the disciplinary action and the circumstances and actions which made the disciplinary action necessary. The employee shall sign a copy only to acknowledge its receipt and shall retain a copy.
- 40:05 An employee may grieve any disciplinary action. Letters of direction and/or letters of expectation shall not be considered discipline. Grievances concerning demotion, suspension or dismissal shall be initiated at Step 2 of the Grievance Procedure.
- **40:06** The person to whom a grievance is made may:
 - (a) Uphold the disciplinary action; or
 - (b) Vary the disciplinary action; or
 - (c) Determine that no disciplinary action is warranted and remove any document pertaining to the disciplinary action from the employee's file(s).
- **40:07** No notice or payment in lieu thereof is required where an employee is terminated.

Article 41 Grievance Procedure

- 41:01 The parties to this Agreement recognize the desirability for prompt resolution of grievances through an orderly process without stoppage of work or refusal to perform work.
- 41:02 A "grievance" is defined as a complaint in writing concerning:
 - (a) The application, interpretation, or alleged violation of this Agreement;

- (b) The dismissal, suspension, demotion, or written reprimand of an employee.
- 41:03 Where either party to this Agreement disputes the general application, interpretation or alleged violation of this Agreement, either party may initiate a policy grievance. Where such a grievance is initiated by the Union it shall be presented to the Executive Director. Where such a grievance is initiated by the Employer it shall be presented to the President of Local #443. In all cases the grievance shall be presented within twenty (20) working days from the date of the action giving rise to the grievance.
- 41:04 Where a grievance has been initiated and the nature of the grievance is such that it has or potentially could have widespread application affecting a number of employees and where as a result the Union deems it impractical that each affected employee grieve separately, the Union shall have the right to present a group grievance. The group grievance shall be presented at Step 1 within twenty (20) working days from the date of the action giving rise to the grievance.
- 41:05 If an employee or the Union fails to initiate or process a grievance within the prescribed time limits, the grievance will be deemed to be abandoned and all rights of recourse to the grievance procedure for that particular grievance shall be at an end. If the Employer fails to reply to a grievance within the prescribed time limits, the employee or the Union may process the grievance to the next step.
- 41:06 It is mutually agreed that an effort shall be made to resolve a potential grievance through discussion before a written grievance is initiated. The employee shall have the right to have a union representative and may elect to have an Elder present at such a discussion. If the potential grievance is not resolved, the employee will have twenty (20) days from the initial meeting date to file a grievance.
- 41:07 An employee has the right to representation by a Union representative at any step of the grievance procedure.

41:08 Step 1:

- (a) Within the twenty (20) working days referenced in Section 41:06, the employee shall present the grievance with the redress requested to the Employer.
- (b) The Director or designate shall sign for receipt of the grievance and if the nature of the grievance is such that the Director or designate is authorized to deal with it, the Director or designate shall issue a decision in writing to the employee and to the Union within fifteen (15) working days.
- (c) The Director or designate may hold a hearing to discuss the grievance with the employee and the employee's representative before giving a decision on the grievance.
- (d) If the nature of the grievance is such that a decision cannot be given below a particular level of authority, the Director or designate shall forward the grievance to the Executive Director or designate and so inform the employee and the Union. The time limits and the procedures applicable to Step 2 shall apply.
- (e) Where the designate at Step 1 is a steward or officer of the Union, the grievance shall be referred to Step 2.

41:09 Step 2:

- (a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee shall submit the same grievance and the redress requested to the Executive Director or designate within fifteen (15) working days of the receipt of the decision at Step 1.
- (b) The Executive Director or designate shall sign for receipt of the grievance and issue a decision in writing to the employee and to the Union within fifteen (15) working days of receipt of the grievance.

- (c) The Executive Director or designate shall hold a hearing to discuss the grievance with the employee and the employee's representative before providing a decision.
- 41:10 Grievances concerning vacancy selection, demotion, suspension or dismissal shall be initiated at Step 2 of the grievance procedure within fifteen (15) working days of the date that the employee became aware of the action.
- 41:11 An employee or the Union may withdraw a grievance at any step of the grievance procedure by providing written notice.
- 41:12 All time limits referred to in this Article may be extended by mutual agreement.

Article 42 Grievance And Arbitration Procedure

- 42:01 In the event of the failure of the parties to settle a grievance under Article 39, within fifteen (15) working days from the date upon which the written reply is received under Step 2 the grievance may be referred to Arbitration.
- **42:02** The procedure for arbitrating grievances shall be as set forth below:
 - (a) Where the party initiating the Arbitration proceeding wishes to request a single arbitrator, the notice referred to in Section 42:01 shall so state and:
 - (i) The parties will attempt to reach agreement on the selection of a single arbitrator within ten (10) working days.
 - (ii) Where the party who receives the notice rejects the request for a single arbitrator or where the parties have failed to reach agreement on the selection of a single arbitrator within ten (10) working days, the party initiating the arbitration proceedings may submit the name of its appointee to an Arbitration Board in accordance with Section 40:02 (b) within ten (10) working days.
 - (iii) A single arbitrator shall be considered to be an arbitration board for purposes of this Article.

- (b) Where the party initiating the arbitration proceeding wishes to request arbitration by a three (3) person board, the notice shall contain the first party's appointee to the arbitration board. The following procedure will then apply:
 - (i) The party who receives the notice shall within ten (10) working days of receiving the notice, name its appointee to the Arbitration Board and notify the other party in writing of such appointee.
 - (ii) The two (2) members of the arbitration board named by the parties shall, within ten (10) working days of the appointment of the second of them, appoint a third member of the Arbitration Board who shall be the Chairperson.
 - (iii) Where the two (2) nominees of the parties fail to agree on the appointment of a Chairperson within the time specified, the Minister responsible for the Labour portfolio shall be requested to appoint a Chairperson.
- (c) The Arbitration Board shall conduct a hearing and shall issue a decision which shall be binding upon the parties and upon any employee or employees affected by it.
- (d) Any of the time limits referred to above may be extended by mutual agreement of the parties.
- (e) The Arbitration Board shall not have the power to add to, subtract from or modify or alter in any way the provisions of this Agreement.
- (f) Where the Arbitration Board determines that an employee has been dismissed or otherwise disciplined by the Employer for just cause, the Arbitration Board may uphold the original discipline or may substitute other penalty or remedy in lieu of dismissal or the disciplinary action as the Arbitration Board deems just and reasonable under the circumstances.

- (g) The expenses incurred by and in respect of an Arbitration Board shall be paid as follows:
 - (i) The parties shall each pay an equal portion of the remuneration and expenses of the Chairperson.
 - (ii) Each party shall pay the remuneration and expenses of its nominee.
 - (iii) Each party shall pay an equal portion of other costs and expenses incurred by the Arbitration Board in conducting the arbitration hearing.

Article 43 Reclassification Procedure

- **43:01** The employee will submit the request for reclassification to the Director of Human Resources, together with the following:
 - (a) The job classification being requested and reasons why the requested classification is considered appropriate; and
 - (b) Any other information in support of the request.
 - Human Resources will, within twenty (20) working days following receipt of the request, provide a reply.
- 43:02 Where the employee considers the reply from Human Resources to be unsatisfactory the employee may file a grievance at Step 2 of the grievance procedure within fifteen (15) working days of receiving the reply. The time limits prescribed in this Article may be extended by mutual agreement of the employee and the Employer.
- 43:03 Where the Employer determines that a position(s) is to be reclassified the Union will be provided with the particulars including the proposed salary range.

Article 44 Employee Files

- 44:01 Upon the written request of an employee, Human Resources shall make the employee's file available for the employee's full examination within five (5) working days of the request being made. Such examination shall be in the presence of a representative of Human Resources. The employee has the option to have a Union representative present.
- 44:02 An employee may request a copy of specific documents on the employee's file. Upon request, an employee will be provided a copy of specific documents in the employee's file.

Article 45 Performance Appraisal

- 45:01 Performance appraisal is a tool to be used in a positive manner to assess an employee's performance level and, where necessary, to identify and outline strategies for improvement. When performance appraisals are conducted, the following will apply:
 - (a) Performance appraisals shall be in writing and the contents shall be discussed with the employee.
 - (b) The employee shall sign the performance appraisal for the sole purpose of indicating that she/he is aware of its contents.
 - (c) The employee shall have the right to add comments to be attached thereto.
 - (d) The employee shall be provided a copy of the performance appraisal.

Article 46 Contracting Out

46:01 Where work is to be contracted out which would result in the redundancy of employees in the bargaining unit, the Employer will provide the Union with four (4) months' notice and enter into discussions concerning the potential impact on Employees within the bargaining unit.

46:02 During the notice period, the Joint Labour Management Committee shall meet to discuss the reasons and possible alternatives to the proposed contracting out as well as to facilitate potential retraining and/or redeployment opportunities.

Article 47 Seniority

- 47:01 "Seniority" is defined as the length of an employee's accumulated service as contained in this Article calculated from the last date on which the Employee commenced employment. Seniority for part-time employees shall be prorated.
- **47:02** Seniority shall include:
 - (a) Periods of workers compensation;
 - (b) Periods of maternity leave; parental leave; compassionate care leave;
 - (c) Approved leaves without pay to a maximum accumulation of one hundred and fifty (150) hours in a fiscal year;
 - (d) Periods of paid leave of absence;
 - (e) Periods of paid sick leave;
 - (f) Approved educational leave to a maximum of one (1) year;
 - (g) Periods of leave while on the Long Term Disability Plan.
- 47:03 Seniority will continue to accrue when an employee is assigned temporarily to a position outside of the bargaining unit for up to six (6) months.
- **47:04** Seniority will terminate when the employee:
 - (a) Resigns;
 - (b) Retires;
 - (c) Is terminated and not reinstated;

- (d) Has been laid-off for twenty-four (24) consecutive months.
- (e) Who is occupying a term position has her/his employment end, unless the term employee secures and commences a permanent position within sixty (60) calendar days following the last day in the term position.
- (f) Is permanently promoted to a position outside the scope of this Agreement;
- (g) Is absent without authorization for a period of five (5) consecutive working days.
- 47:05 A Seniority list will be prepared once annually and will state each employee's accumulated service as at March 31 of each year. Any alleged errors shall be provided to the Human Resources Manager within two (2) months of the seniority list being posted. Alleged errors will be reviewed and rectified if an error is confirmed.

Article 48 Lay-Off

- 48:01 When a reduction in the working force becomes necessary, employees will be laid off in reverse order of seniority within their classification subject to more senior employees being qualified to perform the required work.
- 48:02 In the event of a deletion of an occupied position, as much notice as possible will be given to the incumbent and the incumbent will be entitled to exercise her/his seniority rights subject to her/his ability, performance and qualifications to displace an employee in a position of equal or lower classification. An employee thus displaced shall also be entitled to a like exercise of seniority rights.
- **48:03** Except where specifically provided, this Article does not apply to:
 - (a) Term employees at the end of a specific term of employment; or
 - (b) Term employees with less than two (2) years of seniority.
- **48:04** (a) Four (4) weeks' notice will be provided to:

- (i) Regular employees; and
- (ii) Term employees with one (1) or more years of seniority;
- (b) Two (2) weeks' notice will be provided to term employees with less than one (1) year of seniority.
- **48:05** The Union will be provided a copy of any lay-off notices issued.
- 48:06 For purposes of this Article, "qualifications" refers to education, knowledge, training, skills, experience, aptitude, and cultural proficiency. The Employer, in making a decision with respect to determining which employees are to be retained and which employees are to be laid-off, shall determine qualifications, and the ability of employees to perform the duties which the remaining employees will be required to perform, in a fair, reasonable, and non-discriminatory manner.
- 48:07 An employee who displaces another employee in accordance with the provisions of this Article shall be provided a familiarization period of up to four (4) weeks. The purpose of the familiarization period is to allow the employee to become oriented to the specific duties of the position. The familiarization period is not intended to be a period during which an employee acquires the necessary qualifications and ability.
- **48:08** Employees who are laid-off shall be placed on a re-employment list for a period of up to twenty-four (24) months from the effective date of the lay-off.
- **48:09** Employees who are placed on a re-employment list shall be recalled in seniority order.
- **48:10** An employee who is on the re-employment list must:
 - (a) Report any change of address to the Employer;
 - (b) If recalled, respond to the recall within seven (7) days of receipt of notification of recall;

- (c) Return to work within fourteen (14) days of receipt of notification of recall.
- 48:11 Unless an explanation satisfactory to the Employer is provided, failure to return to work upon recall shall be deemed a resignation.

Article 49 Severance Pay

49:01 Employees who (i) retire in accordance with the Employer's pension plan, or (ii) whose seniority is terminated after having been laid off for twenty-four (24) consecutive months shall be paid severance pay as follows:

At least one (1) year and less than three (3) years of service 2 weeks

At least three (3) years and less than five (5) years of service 4 weeks

At least five (5) years and less than ten (10) years of service 6 weeks

At least ten (10) years of service 8 weeks

Article 50 Devolution and Transfer of Services

- 50:01 In the event of the devolution or transfer of services provided by employees covered by this Agreement, the Union shall be notified no less than four (4) months prior to the transfer of employees. The parties will establish a joint committee to facilitate the orderly transfer of employees who are impacted.
- 50:02 Where the successorship provisions of The Labour Relations Act have been determined to apply, the provisions of this Agreement continue in effect for the affected employees until the expiry of the Agreement.
- 50:03 The Employer and the Union will work together with the successor Employer to negotiate a transition agreement respecting the administration and interpretation of this Agreement during the period required to negotiate a new Collective Agreement.

- 50:04 The Employer will make reasonable efforts and give priority consideration to obtaining employment opportunities, with the new Employer for employees who are not being transferred.
- **50:05** The provisions of this Article do not apply to seconded employees.

Article 51 Technological Change

- 51:01 For purposes of this Article, "technological change" means the introduction of equipment or material of a different nature or kind into the Employer's operations which may affect the security of employees and a change in the manner in which the employer carries on the work that is directly related to the introduction of that equipment or material.
- 51:02 The Employer agrees that it will endeavor to introduce technological change in a manner which, as much as is practicable, will minimize the disruptive effects on services to the public and employees.
- 51:03 Where the Employer intends to introduce technological change, the following procedure will be followed:
 - (a) The Employer will provide the Union, where possible, reasonable notice prior to the date the change is to be effective;
 - (b) During this period, the parties will meet to discuss the steps to be taken to assist the employees who could be affected.
 - (c) Where retraining is to be provided, it shall be provided during the employees' normal working hours except where the retraining is not available during the employee's normal working hours.
- 51:04 Where new or greater skills are required than are already possessed by affected employees under the present methods of operations, such employees shall, at the expense of the employer, be given a training period during which they may acquire the skills necessitated by the new method of operation.

51:05 The provisions of this Article are intended to assist employees affected by technological change and Sections 83, 84 and 85 of The Labour Relations Act do not apply during the term of this Agreement.

Article 52 Loss Of or Damage to Personal Effects

- 52:01 Where an employee, because of the action of a client of AOCFS, suffers damage to, or loss of, eye-glasses, false teeth, watch or other personal effects usually carried to work by the employee in the performance of the employee's duties including clothing, the employee shall be reimbursed in accordance with the following:
 - (a) Full replacement cost provided that the item that is lost or damaged beyond repair has been purchased within six (6) months of the incident;
 - (b) If the item has been purchased within six (6) months to two (2) years of the incident, at eight-five percent (85%) of the replacement cost;
 - (c) At seventy-five percent (75%) of the replacement cost in all other cases.
 - In calculating replacement cost, proof of purchase must be submitted and Provincial Sales Tax (PST) and Goods and Services Tax (GST) are included.
- **52:02** Each incident respecting loss of, or damage to, personal effects as mentioned in Section 52:01 shall be assessed separately,
- **52:03** Employees are responsible for any personal effects which are brought to their place of work and are not specifically required in the course of their employment.
- **52:04** Employees suffering loss of, theft of, or damage to personal effects or clothing incurred when they are away from their normal place of work while on Employer business may claim compensation only for such items as are necessary in the course of their employment away from their normal place of work.

52:05 Where the employee is required to have a vehicle as a condition of employment, the Employer agrees to reimburse employees for the insurance deductible to a maximum of two-hundred dollars (\$200.00) for damage to the employee's vehicle incurred through vandalism or accident while carrying out the employee's duties. Payment will be based on the approved MPI claim.

Article 53 Harassment Prevention and Respectful Workplace

- 53:01 The Employer recognizes that workplace harassment and disrespectful behaviour can jeopardize an individual's dignity, self-esteem and wellbeing and possibly undermine work relationships and productivity. The Employer is committed to building and maintaining a diverse and respectful workplace, where all employees enjoy an environment in which the dignity and self-respect of every person is valued and which is free of harassment, discrimination, bullying, offensive remarks, material, or behaviour.
- 53:02 No one has the right to harass anyone else, at work or in any situation related to employment at AOCFS. All employees are entitled to work free of harassment and share responsibility for ensuring that the workplace is a respectful and safe place for all, free from harassment, ensuring:
 - (a) Mutual respect, fairness and equality
 - (b) Courteous conduct
 - (c) Positive communication
 - (d) Collaborative working relationships
 - (e) Each person's dignity

53:03 "Discrimination" Means:

(a) Differential treatment of an individual on the basis to the individual's actual or presumed membership in or association with some class or group of persons, rather than on the basis of personal merit; or

- (b) Differential treatment of an individual or group on the basis of any characteristic referred to in (d); or
- (c) Differential treatment of an individual or group on the basis of the individuals or groups actual or presumed association with another individual or group whose identity or membership is determined by any characteristic referred to in (d).
- (d) (i) Ancestry, including colour and perceived race;
 - (ii) Nationality or national origin;
 - (iii) Ethnic background or origin;
 - (iv) Religion or creed, or religious belief, religious association or religious activity;
 - (v) Age;
 - (vi) Sex, including sex-determined characteristics or circumstances, such as pregnancy, the possibility of pregnancy, or circumstances related to pregnancy;
 - (vii) Gender identity;
 - (viii) Sexual orientation;
 - (ix) Marital or family status;
 - (x) Source of income;
 - (xi) Political belief, political association or political activity;
 - (xii) Physical or mental disability or related characteristics or circumstances, including reliance on a service animal, a wheelchair, or any other remedial appliance or device;
 - (xiii) Social disadvantage *
 - (xiv) Size.

*It is not discrimination on the basis of social disadvantage unless the discrimination is based on a negative bias or stereotype related to that social disadvantage.

Examples of discrimination may include, but are not limited to:

- Behaviour stating or implying actual or perceived abilities or inabilities based on any characteristic referred to above.
- Applying stereotypes or generalizations based on any characteristic referred to above.
- Unreasonable refusal to work with, or share facilities with a person or persons based on any characteristic referred to above.
- 53:04 Harassment is a form of discrimination and is any objectionable or inappropriate conduct, comment, display, action or gesture by a person made on the basis of any of the characteristics referred to in Section 51:03 (d).

Examples of harassment may include, but are not limited to:

- Unwelcome jokes, innuendos or teasing about a person's body, appearance, race, sexual orientation, etc.
- Racial or ethnic slurs;
- Displaying or circulating pictures, cartoons, or other offensive material;
- Unwanted or unnecessary physical contact including touching, patting or pinching;
- Any form of hazing (a humiliating and degrading initiation rite);
- Unwanted conduct, comments, gestures or invitations of a sexual nature which are likely to cause offence or humiliation or which might on reasonable grounds be perceived as placing a condition of a sexual nature on employment or on any opportunity for participation, training or advancement;
- A reprisal or threat of reprisal for rejecting a sexual solicitation or advance;
- Leering, ogling or other suggestive or obscene gestures;
- Physical or sexual assault.

Personal harassment or what is sometimes referred to as "bullying" is offensive behaviour that is not connected to any human rights-based characteristic. It is any conduct, comment, display, action or gesture that adversely affects a person's psychological or physical well-being and:

As a result of the behaviour being repeated, could reasonably cause the person to be intimidated or humiliated; or

If only a single incidence, could reasonably have a lasting, harmful effect on the person.

Examples of bullying may include, but are not limited to:

- Personal ridicule (put-downs, teasing) or malicious gossip;
- Repeated or continuous incidents of inappropriate yelling, screaming or name-calling;
- Malicious or uncalled-for interference with another person's work or role;
- Interfering with or vandalizing/damaging a person's personal property;
- Physical or verbal abuse/violence, threats or intimidation;
- Insulting or derogatory comments, jokes or gestures;
- Repeated, unjustified threats to remove or restrict opportunities or privileges;
- Shunning or ostracizing a person;
- 53:05 Harassment or bullying may involve individuals or groups and either peer or power relationships. Harassment can be physical or psychological in nature. It can occur between males and females and members of the same sex.
- 53:06 Where the behaviour has the effect of creating a negative, hostile or uncomfortable environment, even if not directed at anyone in particular, the behaviour may still be considered harassment or bullying.
- 53:07 In extreme forms, harassment or bullying may be an offense under Canada's Criminal Code and may require a report be made to the Police. Depending on the nature of the behaviour, it may also constitute abuse resulting in a triggering of the Duty to Report Abuse provisions set out below.

- 53:08 Reasonable conduct of a supervisor or manager in respect of the management and direction of AOCFS employees or the management, direction and guidance of employees does not represent harassment, discrimination or bullying.
- **53:09** Employees are responsible to report harassment and to co-operate in the investigation of a harassment complaint. Anyone who investigates or gives evidence in a complaint is required to keep details confidential.
- 53:10 Employees have the right to file a complaint with the Manitoba Human Rights Commission. This agreement does not discourage or prevent anyone from exercising their legal rights.
- 53:11 Management will take corrective action with anyone under its direction who harasses another person.
- 53:12 Management will not disclose the name of a complainant or an alleged harasser or the circumstances of the complaint to anyone except where disclosure is:
 - (a) Necessary to investigate the complaint
 - (b) A part of taking corrective action
 - (c) Required by law
- 53:13 The Employer is responsible for leading by example and keeping a safe environment, free of harassment, and upon becoming aware of harassment, doing everything in its power to stop it, whether or not a complaint has been made. Supervisors or Directors who ignore harassment are subject to discipline.

Article 54 Notice of Resignation

54:01 (a) Applicable to Supervisors and Case Managers:

An Employee wishing to resign shall provide the Employer with a minimum written notice of four (4) weeks, specifying the last day of work.

(b) Applicable to all other classifications:

An Employee wishing to resign shall provide the Employer with a minimum written notice of two (2) weeks, specifying the last day of work.

- **54:02** (a) Employment may be terminated with less notice with the approval of the Employer.
 - (b) Failure, on the part of the Employee, to provide required notice as stipulated in Section 54:01 may result in the Employer withholding from the final pay the equivalent amount of the notice not provided by the Employee.
- 54:03 Where the employment of the term employee is concluded no notice of resignation is required.
- 54:04 An employee may, with the approval of the Employer, withdraw the notice of resignation within the first two (2) weeks of the notice period.
- **54:05** Employees are required to return all Employer property on, or before, the last day of work.

Article 55 Registration with Manitoba College of Social Workers

- 55:01 The Employer requires an employee who is considered to be a practicing Social Worker as defined in 'The Social Work Profession Act' to be registered with the Manitoba College of Social Workers.
- **55:02** Employees must maintain registration while employed.
- 55:03 The Employer shall pay the annual registration cost for registration with the Manitoba College of Social Workers.

- 55:04 The Employer shall pay the annual liability insurance associated with registration with the Manitoba College of Social Workers.
- 55:05 The Employer shall pay the cost associated with obtaining the Criminal Record Check, Child Abuse Registry Check, Adult Abuse Registry Check and Prior Contact Check as required by the Manitoba College of Social Workers.
- 55:06 An employee who is required by the Manitoba College of Social Workers to complete the "Applicant without a Social Work Degree Substantial Equivalency", shall be reimbursed for the initial application fee and the transcript fee. If elected, the employee shall be reimbursed for the practice test fee. The employee shall be reimbursed for the examination fee upon providing documentation of successful completion of the exam.
- 55:07 All time associated with registering and maintaining their Manitoba College of Social Workers designation, shall be considered a part of an employee's regular duties and paid by the Employer.
- 55:08 The Employer shall not be responsible for any costs of fines levied by the College should there be an allegation of professional misconduct or should the employee be found to be guilty of professional misconduct.

Article 56 Civil Liability

- The Employer maintains liability insurance coverage to protect employees, including former employees, against liability for acts and omissions while acting in an authorized capacity in the course and scope of employment. Coverage is subject to the terms and conditions of the master policy or policies issued to the Employer by the insuring organization. The Employer shall maintain this coverage at current levels during the term of this Agreement.
- 56:02 An Employee, upon being served of any legal notification or process, shall immediately advise the Employer of any such legal notification or process.

Article 57 Acting Status

- 57:01 Where the Employer directs an employee to temporarily perform the duties and responsibilities of another position in the bargaining unit having a higher rate of pay for a minimum of one (1) working day the employee shall be paid a rate that is at least five (5) percent higher than her/his current salary. Upon conclusion of acting status the employee shall revert to her/his original position and former rate of pay.
- 57:02 For purposes of interpretation of this Article, "duties and responsibilities" means the duties and responsibilities that would have been performed by the incumbent during the period in which the incumbent had been replaced.
- 57:03 Where an acting status appointment to a position within the bargaining unit will exceed twelve (12) continuous months, the Employer will notify the Union of the reasons. A meeting may be held to discuss the matter at the request of the Union. The employee who is in acting status may attend at the request of either party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF representatives of Animikii Ozoson Child and Family Services Inc. have hereunto set their hand for, and on behalf of, Animikii Ozoson Child and Family Services Inc.; and representatives of Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union, have hereunto set their hand for, and on behalf of, Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union.

Signed this 26th day of Ctober , 2023.

On behalf of Animikii Ozoson
Child and Family Services Inc.

On behalf of Animikii Ozoson
Child and Family Services Inc.

On behalf of Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

On behalf of Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Appendix "A"- Exclusions From the Bargaining Unit

The parties agree that the following positions are excluded from the Bargaining Unit: Executive Director

Director of Service

Director of Finance

Human Resources Manager

Manager of Quality Assurance, Policy and Training

Executive Assistant

IT Systems and Building Maintenance Specialist

Appendix "B" - Meal Expenses/Travel Allowances

- 1:01 Breakfast an employee is expected to have had breakfast before the start of the day's work, even though some travel may be necessary before the recognized starting time. The cost of breakfast may be claimed when:
 - (a) The employee is in travel status; or
 - (b) The employee has been travelling for more than one (1) hour on Employer business before the employee's normal start time.
- 1:02 Lunch an employee is expected to make arrangements to provide or purchase at her/his expense. The cost of lunch may be claimed when:
 - (a) The employee is in travel status; or
 - (b) The employee is away from her/his normal place of work attending approved training sessions.
- 1:03 Supper an employee may claim the cost of a supper meal when:
 - (a) The employee is in travel status; or
 - (b) The employee has been travelling on Employer business and does not arrive back to her/his residence before 6:30 pm.

Meal Expenses - Travel Within the Province

2:01 An employee who is eligible may claim the actual cost of purchased meals up to the following maximum amounts:

Individual Meals

Breakfast	Lunch	Supper
\$10.00	\$15.00	\$20.00

2:02 Where a single price or flat rate is charged for meals by the supplier and no other reasonable alternative in the location is available (which may occur in

some remote or isolated communities), actual meal expenses exceeding the above maximum may be claimed if supported by a receipt

Definitions

- 3:01 "Travel Status" means absence of the employee from the employee's headquarters area on AOCFS business involving travel and accommodation with the approval of the Supervisor or designate.
- **3:02** "Headquarters Area" means:
 - (a) an area twenty-four (24) kilometers (15 miles) around the employee's headquarters.
- 3:03 "Employee's Headquarters" means the workplace where the employee is normally stationed or required to use as the employee's base of operations on a continuing basis in relation to which the employee has established a residence.

Overnight Child Care

4:01 The Employer shall reimburse employees who are parent/legal guardians who incur additional costs related to childcare expenses when traveling overnight on Employer business. Employees must submit a receipt, to a maximum of \$50.00 for overnight care. The reimbursement must be approved by the employee's supervisor.

Cell Phone Reimbursement

5:01 An employee who is authorized to use a personal cell phone for work purposes, (service use and/or safety reasons), is entitled to claim **sixty-five** (\$65.00) dollars per month. Employees who commence employment or return from an unpaid leave of absence after the first day of the month shall have the allowance prorated **for that month**.

Accommodations

hotels whenever possible. In emergent situations staff can book their own hotel accommodation which shall be reimbursed at actual cost plus tax per night. Receipts are required. Any costs for room service and other charges will be the responsibility of the employee. Any staff charged for smoking in a non-smoking room will have this amount deducted from their pay. Private lodgings shall be reimbursed at a rate of fifty (\$50.00) dollars per night. Receipts are required. The employee's designated area of residence is not applicable.

Incidentals Allowance

7:01 This allowance may be claimed at a rate of \$10.00 per overnight when an employee is in travel status.

Mileage

8:01 Employees required to use their own vehicle on Employer business will be paid mileage at the rate of sixty-five (.65) cents per kilometer.

Parking Expenses

- 9:01 Upon presentation of receipt, an employee may claim parking expenses for:
 - (a) Short-term parking, when the employee is away from the workplace; and
 - (b) Overnight parking where it is not provided with accommodation.

Appendix "C" - Casual Employees

1:01 The only provisions of this Agreement which apply to casual employees are as follows:

Article 1 - Definitions

Article 4 - Application of Agreement

Article 5 - Non Discrimination

Article 6 - Management Rights

Article 9 - Union Security

Article 17 - Retroactivity

Article 18 - Overtime

Article 19 - Holidays

- provisions respecting 1½x for time worked on the listed holidays only
- all other provisions in accordance with Employment Standards Act

Article 37 - Conduct of Employees

Article 38 - Disciplinary Action

Article 39 - Grievance Procedure - limited to the provisions in this Article

Article 40 - Grievance and Arbitration Procedure - limited to the provisions of this Article

Article 42 - Employee Files

Article 50 - Loss Of or Damage To Personal Effects

Article 51 – Harassment Prevention and Respectful Workplace

Article 54 - Civil Liability

- 1:02 There is no obligation for the Employer to offer work to a casual employee or for a casual employee to accept work that is offered.
- 1:03 A casual employee who has not worked for a period of forty-five (45) calendar days may be terminated at the sole discretion of the Employer.

Memorandum of Agreement #1

between

Animikii Ozoson Child and Family Services Inc.

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Re: Indigenous Employment Strategy/Representative Workforce

The parties understand and agree that Indigenous persons are currently significantly underrepresented, and that additional actions are needed to promote and facilitate employment of Indigenous persons at all levels. It is therefore mutually agreed that the parties will work in cooperation to develop strategic initiatives and programs that:

- (a) Fosters mutual respect, trust, fairness, open communication, and understanding;
- (b) Focuses on recruiting of Indigenous workers;
- (c) Identifies workplace barriers that may be discouraging or preventing Indigenous workers from entering and remaining in the workforce;
- (d) Facilitates the development of effective and culturally competent service models.
- (e) Promotes a workforce that contributes to an experience of cultural safety for Indigenous clients served.
- (f) Implements educational opportunities for all employees to promote cultural awareness of Indigenous peoples and the models, approaches and practices that best serve Indigenous children, families and communities.

(g) Supports a workforce with knowledge, skill and lived experience which makes Employees competent to apply a cultural service lens and to provide a culturally appropriate, differential response for families served.

Signed this 26th day of Ctober , 2023.

On behalf of Animikii Ozoson
Child and Family Services Inc.

On behalf of Animikii Ozoson
Child and Family Services Inc.

On behalf of Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

On behalf of Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Memorandum of Agreement #2

between

Animikii Ozoson Child and Family Services Inc.

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Re: Employment Equity

In accordance with the Employer's employment equity goals, the parties' commitment to non-discrimination as contained in Article 5 of this Agreement, and to the principles of employment equity, the Employer and the Union recognize the responsibility and the need to promote equity in the employment of women, visible minorities, indigenous people, persons with disabilities, persons of any sexual orientation or gender identity and such other groups as may be designated by legislation.

In factoring employment equity into the recruitment and appointment process, the following principles shall apply:

- 1. Employment equity shall be applied as a factor in competitions for which there is inadequate representation of one (1) or more of the four (4) under-represented groups or for which there is a bona fide organizational need.
- 2. The weighting afforded employment equity shall be no greater than that applied to the highest weighted essential selection criterion.
- 3. The rating applied to employment equity candidates shall be the same as that applied to the "meets standard" rating for the essential selection criteria.
- 4. Employment equity candidates must be qualified in all other essential selection criteria.
- 5. The rating for employment equity shall be applied only once in the selection process.

Signed this 26th day of	tober 1, 2023.
Morros	XVIAMA
On behalf of Animikii Ozoson	On behalf of Manitoba Government
Child and Family Services Inc.	and General Employees' Union
In on L'Avallee	. ,
On behalf of Animikii Ozoson Child and Family Services Inc.	On behalf of Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Memorandum of Agreement #3

between

Animikii Ozoson Child and Family Services Inc.

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Re: Developmental Opportunities for Youth in Care

The Employer and the Union agree to providing developmental opportunities for youth in care who are "aging out" or participating in the Youth Engagement Program (AYA). When such an opportunity presents, the Employer and the Union must mutually agree to each opportunity presented on a case by case basis.

Employees in the bargaining unit will not have their income reduced nor will there be any reduction in the staff complement as a result of providing such developmental opportunities.

Signed this 26th day of Ctober , 2023.

On behalf of Animikii Ozoson
Child and Family Services Inc.

On behalf of Animikii Ozoson
Child and Family Services Inc.

On behalf of Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

On behalf of Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Salary Schedule

December 1, 2022 to November 30, 2025

December 1, 2022 to November 30, 2023 (2% GWI + 4% Market Value Adjustment)

Advis Office A AOA	•	•	•		-	•	-	•	•	40	1 0 !
Admin Officer 1 - AO1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	51,645.69	53,123.26	54,705.35	56,431.57	58,492.24	60,656.34	-	-	-	-	61,905.07
Bi-weekly	1,986.37	2,043.20	2,104.05	2,170.45	2,249.70	2,332.94	-	-	-	-	2,380.96
Hourly	26.48	27.24	28.05	28.94	30.00	31.11	-	-	-	-	31.75
Admin Officer 2 - AO2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	57,451.45	59,615.56	61,634.42	63,964.65	66,357.59	68,853.94	-	-	-	-	70,228.10
Bi-weekly	2,209.67	2,292.91	2,370.55	2,460.18	2,552.22	2,648.23	-	-	-	-	2,701.08
Hourly	29.46	30.57	31.61	32.80	34.03	35.31	-	-	-	-	36.01
Accounting Clerk 1 - AK1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	44,945.45	46,215.09	47,442.92	48,649.83	50,022.88	51,416.85	-	-	-	-	52,415.82
Bi-weekly	1,728.67	1,777.50	1,824.73	1,871.15	1,923.96	1,977.57	-	-	-	-	2,015.99
Hourly	23.05	23.70	24.33	24.95	25.65	26.37	-	-	-	-	26.88
Accounting Clerk 2 - AK2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	51,500.46	53,060.55	54,392.89	55,891.36	57,472.35	59,178.77	-	-	-	-	60,364.78
Bi-weekly	1,980.79	2,040.79	2,092.03	2,149.67	2,210.48	2,276.11	-	-	-	-	2,321.72
Hourly	26.41	27.21	27.89	28.66	29.47	30.35	-	-	-	-	30.96
Admin Secretary 1 - AY1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	33,667.29	34,395.62	35,415.50	36,351.78	37,308.96	-	-	-	-	-	38,099.99
Bi-weekly	1,294.90	1,322.91	1,362.13	1,398.15	1,434.96	-	-	-	-	-	1,465.38
Hourly	17.27	17.64	18.16	18.64	19.13	-	-	-	-	-	19.54
Admin Secretary 2 - AY2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	38,120.91	38,931.75	39,890.03	40,908.81	42,157.55	43,198.34	-	-	-	-	44,071.90
Bi-weekly	1,466.19	1,497.38	1,534.23	1,573.42	1,621.44	1,661.47	-	-	-	-	1,695.07
Hourly	19.55	19.97	20.46	20.98	21.62	22.15	-	-	-	-	22.60
Admin Secretary 3 - AY3	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	43,488.28	44,653.46	45,881.97	47,150.90	48,420.91	49,710.57	-	-	-	-	50,730.32
Bi-weekly	1,672.63	1,717.44	1,764.69	1,813.50	1,862.34	1,911.95	-	-	-	-	1,951.17
Hourly	22.30	22.90	23.53	24.18	24.83	25.49	_	_		_	26.02

Clerk 2 - CL2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	35,873.19	36,768.75	37,703.92	38,786.52	39,764.61	40,908.81	-	-	-	-	41,699.86
Bi-weekly	1,379.74	1,414.18	1,450.15	1,491.79	1,529.41	1,573.42	-	-	-	-	1,603.84
Hourly	18.40	18.86	19.34	19.89	20.39	20.98	-	-	-	-	21.38
Clerk 3 - CL3	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	43,572.40	44,716.61	45,923.54	47,234.98	48,482.61	49,981.08	-	-	-	-	51,000.97
Bi-weekly	1,675.86	1,719.87	1,766.29	1,816.73	1,864.72	1,922.35	-	-	-	-	1,961.58
Hourly	22.34	22.93	23.55	24.22	24.86	25.63	-	-	-	-	26.15
Social Services Worker 1 - SP1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	46,818.00	48,171.24	49,689.52	51,271.62	52,936.22	54,621.74	-	-	-	-	55,745.04
Bi-weekly	1,800.69	1,852.74	1,911.14	1,971.99	2,036.01	2,100.84	-	-	-	-	2,144.04
Hourly	24.01	24.70	25.48	26.29	27.15	28.01	-	-	-	-	28.59
Social Services Worker 2 - SP2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	49,252.75	50,980.06	52,686.47	54,559.03	56,473.38	58,534.05	-	-	-	-	59,740.97
Bi-weekly	1,894.34	1,960.77	2,026.40	2,098.42	2,172.05	2,251.31	-	-	-	-	2,297.73
Hourly	25.26	26.14	27.02	27.98	28.96	30.02	-	-	-	-	30.64
Social Services Worker 3 - SP3	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	53,727.27	55,682.33	57,576.88	59,720.07	61,966.68	64,277.11	66,565.53	69,187.31	-	-	70,581.27
Bi-weekly	2,066.43	2,141.63	2,214.50	2,296.93	2,383.33	2,472.20	2,560.21	2,661.05	-	-	2,714.66
Hourly	27.55	28.56	29.53	30.63	31.78	32.96	34.14	35.48	-	-	36.20
Social Services Worker 4 - SP4	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	59,261.28	61,405.58	63,527.87	65,837.19	68,251.04	70,706.69	73,328.47	76,282.51	79,216.75	82,171.89	83,836.50
Bi-weekly	2,279.28	2,361.75	2,443.38	2,532.20	2,625.04	2,719.49	2,820.33	2,933.94	3,046.80	3,160.46	3,224.48
Hourly	30.39	31.49	32.58	33.76	35.00	36.26	37.60	39.12	40.62	42.14	42.99
Social Services Worker 5 - SP5	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	68,417.17	70,935.53	73,931.37	76,574.06	79,571.02	82,650.48	85,979.70	89,246.19	92,887.86	-	94,739.50
Bi-weekly	2,631.43	2,728.29	2,843.51	2,945.16	3,060.42	3,178.86	3,306.91	3,432.55	3,572.61	-	3,643.83
Hourly	35.09	36.38	37.91	39.27	40.81	42.38	44.09	45.77	47.63	-	48.58
Support Worker 1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	41,070.46	42,314.38	43,583.82	44,891.33	46,238.07	47,625.22	49,053.97	50,525.59	52,041.36	-	53,602.60
Bi-weekly	1,579.63	1,627.48	1,676.30	1,726.59	1,778.39	1,831.74	1,886.69	1,943.29	2,001.59	-	2,061.64
Hourly	21.06	21.70	22.35	23.02	23.71	24.42	25.16	25.91	26.69	-	27.49
Support Worker 2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	41,471.05	42,736.26	44,018.36	45,338.90	46,699.06	48,100.04	49,543.04	51,029.33	52,560.22		54,137.02
Bi-weekly	1,595.04	42,736.26 1,643.70	1,693.01	45,336.90 1,743.80	1,796.12	1,850.00	49,545.04 1,905.50	1,962.67	2,021.55	-	2,082.19
Hourly	1,595.04	21.92	22.57	23.25	23.95	24.67	25.41	26.17	26.95	-	2,002.19
Houriy	21.21	21.32	22.31	20.20	20.00	24.01	20.41	20.17	20.55	-	21.10

81

December 1, 2023 to November 30, 2024 (2% GWI)

Admin Officer 1 - AO1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	52,678.60	54,185.73	55,799.46	57,560.20	59,662.08	61,869.47	-	-	-	-	63,143.17
Bi-weekly	2,026.10	2,084.07	2,146.13	2,213.85	2,294.70	2,379.60	-	-	-	-	2,428.58
Hourly	27.01	27.79	28.62	29.52	30.60	31.73	-	-	-	-	32.38
Admin Officer 2 - AO2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	58,600.48	60,807.87	62,867.11	65,243.94	67,684.74	70,231.02	-	-	-	-	71,632.66
Bi-weekly	2,253.86	2,338.76	2,417.97	2,509.38	2,603.26	2,701.19	-	-	-	-	2,755.10
Hourly	30.05	31.18	32.24	33.46	34.71	36.02	-	-	-	-	36.73
Accounting Clerk 1 - AK1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	45,844.36	47,139.39	48,391.78	49,622.83	51,023.34	52,445.19	-	-	-	-	53,464.14
Bi-weekly	1,763.24	1,813.05	1,861.22	1,908.57	1,962.44	2,017.12	-	-	-	-	2,056.31
Hourly	23.51	24.17	24.82	25.45	26.17	26.89	-	-	-	-	27.42
Accounting Clerk 2 - AK2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	52,530.47	54,121.76	55,480.75	57,009.19	58,621.80	60,362.35	-	-	-	-	61,572.08
Bi-weekly	2,020.40	2,081.61	2,133.88	2,192.66	2,254.68	2,321.63	-	-	-	-	2,368.16
Hourly	26.94	27.75	28.45	29.24	30.06	30.96	-	-	-	-	31.58
Admin Secretary 1 - AY1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	34,340.64	35,083.53	36,123.81	37,078.82	38,055.14	-	-	-	-	-	38,861.99
Bi-weekly	1,320.79	1,349.37	1,389.38	1,426.11	1,463.66	-	-	-	-	-	1,494.69
Hourly	17.61	17.99	18.53	19.01	19.52	-	-	-	-	-	19.93
Admin Secretary 2 - AY2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	38,883.33	39,710.39	40,687.83	41,726.99	43,000.70	44,062.31	-	-	-	-	44,953.34
Bi-weekly	1,495.51	1,527.32	1,564.92	1,604.88	1,653.87	1,694.70	-	-	-	-	1,728.97
Hourly	19.94	20.36	20.87	21.40	22.05	22.60	-	-	-	-	23.05
Admin Secretary 3 - AY3	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	44,358.05	45,546.53	46,799.61	48,093.92	49,389.33	50,704.78	-	-	-	-	51,744.93
Bi-weekly	1,706.08	1,751.79	1,799.99	1,849.77	1,899.59	1,950.18	-	-	-	-	1,990.19
Hourly	22.75	23.36	24.00	24.66	25.33	26.00	-	-	-	-	26.54

Amenica Minica	Clerk 2 - CL2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Hourly 18.78 19.23 19.72 20.23 20.20 21.40 0. 	Annual	36,590.65	37,504.13	38,458.00	39,562.25	40,559.90	41,726.99	-	-	-	-	42,533.86
Part	Bi-weekly	1,407.33	1,442.47	1,479.15	1,521.63	1,560.00	1,604.88	-	-	-	-	1,635.92
Parcial	Hourly	18.76	19.23	19.72	20.29	20.80	21.40	-	-	-	-	21.81
B-weesley	Clerk 3 - CL3	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Houry	Annual	44,443.85	45,610.94	46,842.01	48,179.68	49,452.26	50,980.70	-	-	-	-	52,020.99
Part	Bi-weekly	1,709.38	1,754.27	1,801.62	1,853.06	1,902.01	1,960.80	-	-	-	-	2,000.81
Annual 47,754.36 49,194.66 50,883.31 52,297.05 53,994.94 55,714.17 - - - 5,889.94 5,889.94 5,899.94 5,899.94 1,895.71 1,899.79 1,994.96 2,011.43 2,011.73 2,122.85 - - - - - 2,165.85 2,999.86 2,899.94 2,899.	Hourly	22.79	23.39	24.02	24.71	25.36	26.14	-	-	-	-	26.68
B-weeldy 1,885/7 1,885/7 1,985/9 1,949.36 2,011.43 2,076.73 2,142.85 2,186.92 1,001/9 26.20 25.99 26.82 27.69 27.69 27.60 7 8 9 10 Long Service Worker 2-SP2 1 2 3 4 5 66.80 21 2.60 2.60 3 2.40 3 2.21 2.60 3 2.40 3 2.21 2.60 3 2.40 3 2.21 2.60 3 2.40 3 2.21 3.60 3 2.40 3 2.21 3.60 3 2.40 3 2.21 3.60 3 2.40 3 2.21 3.60 3 2.40 3 2.21 3.60 3 2.40 3 2.21 3.60 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.21 3.60 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 3 2.40 3 2.40 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	Social Services Worker 1 - SP1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Flouny Cat C	Annual			50,683.31	52,297.05			-	-	-	-	
Part	Bi-weekly	1,836.71	1,889.79	1,949.36	2,011.43	2,076.73	2,142.85	-	-	-	-	2,186.92
Arnual 50.237.81 51.999.66 53,740.20 55.650.21 57.602.85 59,704.73 60.935.79 B-weekly 1.932.22 1.999.99 2.066.93 2.140.39 2.215.49 2.296.34 2.245.68 Hourly 25.76 26.67 27.56 28.54 295.4 30.62 2.245.68 Social Services Worker 3 - SP3	Hourly	24.49	25.20	25.99	26.82	27.69	28.57	-	-	-	-	29.16
Bi-weekly	Social Services Worker 2 - SP2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Hourly C25.76 C26.77 C27.56 C28.54 C29.54 C	Annual	50,237.81	51,999.66	53,740.20	55,650.21	57,602.85	59,704.73	-	-	-	-	60,935.79
Social Services Worker 3 - SP3	Bi-weekly		1,999.99	2,066.93	2,140.39			-	-	-	-	
Annual 54,801.82 56,795.98 58,728.42 60,914.47 63,206.01 65,562.65 67,896.84 70,571.06 - 71,992.90 Bi-weekly 2,107.76 2,184.46 2,258.79 2,342.86 2,431.00 2,521.64 2,611.42 2,714.27 - 2.768.96 Hourly 281.0 29.13 30.12 31.24 32.41 33.62 34.82 36.19 - 2.768.96 Hourly 281.0 29.13 30.12 31.24 32.41 33.62 34.82 36.19 - 2.768.96 Hourly 30.46.51 62,633.69 64,784.33 67,518.24 2,677.54 2,718.28 74,795.04 77,808.16 80,801.09 83,815.33 85,513.23 Bi-weekly 2,324.87 2,408.99 2,492.25 2,562.84 2,677.54 2,773.86 2,976.73 2,992.62 3,107.73 3,223.67 3,288.97 Hourly 31.00 32.12 33.23 34.44 35.70 36.99 38.36 39.90 41.44 42.98 43.85 Social Services Worker 5 - SP5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Long Service Morker 9 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.	Hourly	25.76	26.67	27.56	28.54	29.54	30.62	-	-	-	-	31.25
Bi-weekly 2,107.76 2,184.46 2,258.79 2,342.86 2,431.00 2,521.64 2,611.42 2,714.27 - 2 2,768.96 2,610.01 2,213 30.12 31.24 32.41 33.62 34.82 36.19 - 3 - 3 - 3.69.95 36.99 34.98.73 36.99 34.82 36.19 - 3 - 3 - 3.69.95 34.82 36.19 - 3 - 3.69.95 36.99 34.82 36.19 - 3 - 3.69.95 36.19 - 3 - 3.69.95 36.19 - 3 - 3.69.95 36.19 - 3 - 3.69.95 36.19 - 3 - 3.69.95 36.19 36.19 36.19	Social Services Worker 3 - SP3	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Hourly Cash Cash	Annual	54,801.82	56,795.98	58,728.42	60,914.47	63,206.01	65,562.65	67,896.84	70,571.06	-	-	
Social Services Worker 4 - SP4	Bi-weekly	2,107.76	2,184.46	2,258.79	2,342.86	2,431.00	2,521.64	2,611.42	2,714.27	-	-	2,768.96
Annual 60,446.51 62,633.69 64,798.43 67,153.93 69,616.06 72,120.82 74,795.04 77,808.16 80,801.09 83,815.33 85,513.23 81	Hourly	28.10	29.13	30.12	31.24	32.41	33.62	34.82	36.19	-	-	36.92
Bi-weekly 2,324.87 2,408.99 2,492.25 2,582.84 2,677.54 2,773.88 2,876.73 2,992.62 3,107.73 3,223.67 3,288.97 Hourly 31.00 32.12 33.23 34.44 35.70 36.99 38.36 39.90 41.44 42.98 43.85 Social Services Worker 5 - SP5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Long Service Annual 69,785.51 72,354.24 75,410.00 78,105.54 81,162.44 84,303.49 87,699.29 91,031.11 94,745.62 - 96,634.29 Bi-weekly 2,684.06 2,782.86 2,900.38 3,004.06 3,121.63 3,242.44 3,373.05 3,501.20 3,644.06 - 3,716.70 Hourly 35.79 37.10 38.67 40.05 41.62 43.23 44.97 46.68 48.59 - 49.56 Support Worker 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Long Service Annual 41,891.87 43,160.67 44,455.50 45,789.16 47,162.83 48,577.72 50,035.05 51,536.10 53,082.19 - 54,674.65 Bi-weekly 1,611.23 1,660.03 1,709.83 1,761.12 1,813.96 1,868.37 1,924.43 1,982.16 2,041.62 - 2,102.87 Hourly 21.48 22.13 22.80 23.48 24.19 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 - 28.04 Support Worker 2 1 2 3 44.887.33 46,245.68 47,633.04 49,062.04 50,533.90 52,049.92 53,611.42 - 55,219.76 Bi-weekly 1,626.94 1,676.58 1,726.87 1,778.68 1,832.04 1,887.00 1,943.61 2,001.92 2,061.98 - 2,123.84 Support Worker 2 1 2 3 44.887.33 46,245.68 47,633.04 49,062.04 50,533.90 52,049.92 53,611.42 - 55,219.76 Bi-weekly 1,626.94 1,676.58 1,726.87 1,778.68 1,832.04 1,887.00 1,943.61 2,001.92 2,061.98 - 2,123.84 Support Worker 2 1 2 3 44.962.04 1,887.00 1,943.61 2,001.92 2,061.98 - 2,123.84 Support Worker 3 1,624.48 1,624.58 1,726.87 1,778.68 1,832.04 1,887.00 1,943.61 2,001.92 2,061.98 - 2,123.84 Support Worker 4 1,626.94 1,676.58 1,726.87 1,778.68 1,832.04 1,887.00 1,943.61 2,001.92 2,061.98 - 2,123.84 Support Worker 4 1,626.94 1,676.58 1,726.87 1,77	Social Services Worker 4 - SP4	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Hourly Sale Social Services Worker 5 - SP5 Se T Se Services Worker 5 - SP5 Servi	Annual	60,446.51	62,633.69	64,798.43	67,153.93	69,616.06	72,120.82	74,795.04	77,808.16	80,801.09	83,815.33	85,513.23
Social Services Worker 5 - SP5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Long Service Annual 69,785.51 72,354.24 75,410.00 78,105.54 81,162.44 84,303.49 87,699.29 91,031.11 94,745.62 - 96,634.29 Bi-weekly 2,684.06 2,782.86 2,900.38 3,004.06 3,121.63 3,242.44 3,373.05 3,501.20 3,644.06 - 3,716.70 Hourly 35.79 37.10 38.67 40.05 41.62 43.23 44.97 46.68 48.59 - 49.56 Support Worker 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Long Service Annual 41,891.87 43,160.67 44,455.50 45,789.16 47,162.83 48,577.72 50,035.05 51,536.10 53,082.19 - 54,674.65 Bi-weekly 1,611.23 1,660.03 1,709.83 1,761.12 1,813.96 1,868.37 <	Bi-weekly	2,324.87	2,408.99	2,492.25	2,582.84	2,677.54	2,773.88	2,876.73	2,992.62	3,107.73	3,223.67	3,288.97
Annual 69,785.51 72,354.24 75,410.00 78,105.54 81,162.44 84,303.49 87,699.29 91,031.11 94,745.62 - 96,634.29 Bi-weekly 2,684.06 2,782.86 2,900.38 3,004.06 3,121.63 3,242.44 3,373.05 3,501.20 3,644.06 - 3,716.70 Hourly 35.79 37.10 38.67 40.05 41.62 43.23 44.97 46.68 48.59 - 49.56 Support Worker 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Long Service Annual 41,891.87 43,160.67 44,455.50 45,789.16 47,162.83 48,577.72 50,035.05 51,536.10 53,082.19 - 54,674.65 Bi-weekly 1,611.23 1,660.03 1,709.83 1,761.12 1,813.96 1,868.37 1,924.43 1,982.16 2,041.62 - 2,102.87 Hourly 21.48 22.13 22.80 23.48 24.19 24.9	Hourly	31.00	32.12	33.23	34.44	35.70	36.99	38.36	39.90	41.44	42.98	43.85
Bi-weekly 2,684.06 2,782.86 2,900.38 3,004.06 3,121.63 3,242.44 3,373.05 3,501.20 3,644.06 - 3,716.70 Hourly 35.79 37.10 38.67 40.05 41.62 43.23 44.97 46.68 48.59 - 49.56 Support Worker 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Long Service Annual 41,891.87 43,160.67 44,455.50 45,789.16 47,162.83 48,577.72 50,035.05 51,536.10 53,082.19 - 54,674.65 Bi-weekly 1,611.23 1,660.03 1,709.83 1,761.12 1,813.96 1,868.37 1,924.43 1,982.16 2,041.62 - 2,102.87 Hourly 21.48 22.13 22.80 23.48 24.19 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 - 28.04 Support Worker 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Long Service Annual 42,300.47 43,590.99 44,898.73 46,245.68 47,633.04 49,062.04 50,533.90 52,049.92 53,611.42 - 55,219.76 Bi-weekly 1,626.94 1,676.58 1,726.87 1,778.68 1,832.04 1,887.00 1,943.61 2,001.92 2,061.98 - 2,123.84 Company	Social Services Worker 5 - SP5	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Hourly 35.79 37.10 38.67 40.05 41.62 43.23 44.97 46.68 48.59 - 49.56 Support Worker 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Long Service Annual 41,891.87 43,160.67 44,455.50 45,789.16 47,162.83 48,577.72 50,035.05 51,536.10 53,082.19 - 54,674.65 Bi-weekly 1,611.23 1,660.03 1,709.83 1,761.12 1,813.96 1,868.37 1,924.43 1,982.16 2,041.62 - 2,102.87 Hourly 21.48 22.13 22.80 23.48 24.19 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 - 28.04 Support Worker 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Long Service Annual 42,300.47 43,590.99 44,898.73 46,245.68 47,633.04 49,062.04 50,533.90 52,049.92	Annual	69,785.51	72,354.24	75,410.00	78,105.54	81,162.44	84,303.49	87,699.29	91,031.11	94,745.62	-	96,634.29
Support Worker 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Long Service Annual 41,891.87 43,160.67 44,455.50 45,789.16 47,162.83 48,577.72 50,035.05 51,536.10 53,082.19 - 54,674.65 Bi-weekly 1,611.23 1,660.03 1,709.83 1,761.12 1,813.96 1,868.37 1,924.43 1,982.16 2,041.62 - 2,102.87 Hourly 21.48 22.13 22.80 23.48 24.19 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 - 28.04 Annual 42,300.47 43,590.99 44,898.73 46,245.68 47,633.04 49,062.04 50,533.90 52,049.92 53,611.42 - 55,219.76 Bi-weekly 1,626.94 1,676.58 1,726.87 1,778.68 1,832.04 1,887.00 1,943.61 2,001.92 2,061.98 - 2,123.84	Bi-weekly	2,684.06	2,782.86	2,900.38	3,004.06	3,121.63	3,242.44	3,373.05	3,501.20	3,644.06	-	3,716.70
Annual 41,891.87 43,160.67 44,455.50 45,789.16 47,162.83 48,577.72 50,035.05 51,536.10 53,082.19 - 54,674.65 Bi-weekly 1,611.23 1,660.03 1,709.83 1,761.12 1,813.96 1,868.37 1,924.43 1,982.16 2,041.62 - 2,102.87 Hourly 21.48 22.13 22.80 23.48 24.19 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 - 28.04 Support Worker 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Long Service Annual 42,300.47 43,590.99 44,898.73 46,245.68 47,633.04 49,062.04 50,533.90 52,049.92 53,611.42 - 55,219.76 Bi-weekly 1,626.94 1,676.58 1,726.87 1,778.68 1,832.04 1,887.00 1,943.61 2,001.92 2,061.98 - 2,123.84	Hourly	35.79	37.10	38.67	40.05	41.62	43.23	44.97	46.68	48.59	-	49.56
Bi-weekly 1,611.23 1,660.03 1,709.83 1,761.12 1,813.96 1,868.37 1,924.43 1,982.16 2,041.62 - 2,102.87	Support Worker 1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Hourly 21.48 22.13 22.80 23.48 24.19 24.91 25.66 26.43 27.22 - 28.04 Support Worker 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Long Service Annual 42,300.47 43,590.99 44,898.73 46,245.68 47,633.04 49,062.04 50,533.90 52,049.92 53,611.42 - 55,219.76 Bi-weekly 1,626.94 1,676.58 1,726.87 1,778.68 1,832.04 1,887.00 1,943.61 2,001.92 2,061.98 - 2,123.84	Annual	41,891.87	43,160.67	44,455.50	45,789.16	47,162.83	48,577.72	50,035.05	51,536.10	53,082.19	-	54,674.65
Support Worker 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Long Service Annual 42,300.47 43,590.99 44,898.73 46,245.68 47,633.04 49,062.04 50,533.90 52,049.92 53,611.42 - 55,219.76 Bi-weekly 1,626.94 1,676.58 1,726.87 1,778.68 1,832.04 1,887.00 1,943.61 2,001.92 2,061.98 - 2,123.84	Bi-weekly	1,611.23	1,660.03	1,709.83	1,761.12	1,813.96	1,868.37	1,924.43	1,982.16	2,041.62	-	2,102.87
Annual 42,300.47 43,590.99 44,898.73 46,245.68 47,633.04 49,062.04 50,533.90 52,049.92 53,611.42 - 55,219.76 Bi-weekly 1,676.58 1,726.87 1,778.68 1,832.04 1,887.00 1,943.61 2,001.92 2,061.98 - 2,123.84	Hourly	21.48	22.13	22.80	23.48	24.19	24.91	25.66	26.43	27.22	-	28.04
Annual 42,300.47 43,590.99 44,898.73 46,245.68 47,633.04 49,062.04 50,533.90 52,049.92 53,611.42 - 55,219.76 Bi-weekly 1,676.58 1,726.87 1,778.68 1,832.04 1,887.00 1,943.61 2,001.92 2,061.98 - 2,123.84	Support Worker 2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Bi-weekly 1,626.94 1,676.58 1,726.87 1,778.68 1,832.04 1,887.00 1,943.61 2,001.92 2,061.98 - 2,123.84	Annual	42.300.47		44.898.73	46,245.68	47.633.04	49.062.04	50.533.90		53.611.42	-	
			*	,		•			,		-	
	,			•		•			,		-	

83

December 1, 2024 to November 30, 2025 (2% GWI)

Admin Officer 1 - AO1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	53,732.17	55,269.44	56,915.45	58,711.40	60,855.32	63,106.86	-	_	-	-	64,406.03
Bi-weekly	2,066.62	2,125.75	2,189.06	2,258.13	2,340.59	2,427.19	-	-	-	-	2,477.16
Hourly	27.55	28.34	29.19	30.11	31.21	32.36	-	-	-	-	33.03
Admin Officer 2 - AO2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	59,772.49	62,024.03	64,124.45	66,548.82	69,038.43	71,635.64	-	-	-	-	73,065.31
Bi-weekly	2,298.94	2,385.54	2,466.33	2,559.57	2,655.32	2,755.22	-	-	-	-	2,810.20
Hourly	30.65	31.81	32.88	34.13	35.40	36.74	-	-	-	-	37.47
Accounting Clerk 1 - AK1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	46,761.25	48,082.18	49,359.62	50,615.29	52,043.81	53,494.09	-	-	-	-	54,533.42
Bi-weekly	1,798.51	1,849.31	1,898.45	1,946.74	2,001.69	2,057.47	-	-	-	-	2,097.44
Hourly	23.98	24.66	25.31	25.96	26.69	27.43	-	-	-	-	27.97
Accounting Clerk 2 - AK2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	53,581.08	55,204.20	56,590.37	58,149.37	59,794.24	61,569.60	-	-	-	-	62,803.52
Bi-weekly	2,060.81	2,123.24	2,176.55	2,236.51	2,299.78	2,368.06	-	-	-	-	2,415.52
Hourly	27.48	28.31	29.02	29.82	30.66	31.57	-	-	-	-	32.21
Admin Secretary 1 - AY1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	35,027.45	35,785.20	36,846.29	37,820.40	38,816.24	-	-	-	-	-	39,639.23
Bi-weekly	1,347.21	1,376.35	1,417.17	1,454.63	1,492.93	-	-	-	-	-	1,524.59
Hourly	17.96	18.35	18.90	19.40	19.91	-	-	-	-	-	20.33
Admin Secretary 2 - AY2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	39,661.00	40,504.60	41,501.59	42,561.53	43,860.71	44,943.56	-	-	-	-	45,852.41
Bi-weekly	1,525.42	1,557.87	1,596.22	1,636.98	1,686.95	1,728.60	-	-	-	-	1,763.55
Hourly	20.34	20.77	21.28	21.83	22.49	23.05	-	-	-	-	23.51
Admin Secretary 3 - AY3	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	45,245.21	46,457.46	47,735.60	49,055.80	50,377.12	51,718.88	-	-	-	-	52,779.83
Bi-weekly	1,740.20	1,786.83	1,835.98	1,886.76	1,937.58	1,989.19	-	-	-	-	2,029.99
Hourly	23.20	23.82	24.48	25.16	25.83	26.52	-	-	-	-	27.07

Clerk 2 - CL2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	37,322.46	38,254.21	39,227.16	40,353.50	41,371.10	42,561.53	-	-	-	-	43,384.54
Bi-weekly	1,435.48	1,471.32	1,508.74	1,552.06	1,591.20	1,636.98	-	-	-	-	1,668.64
Hourly	19.14	19.62	20.12	20.69	21.22	21.83	-	-	-	-	22.25
Clerk 3 - CL3	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	45,332.73	46,523.16	47,778.85	49,143.27	50,441.31	52,000.31	-	-	-	_	53,061.41
Bi-weekly	1,743.57	1,789.35	1,837.65	1,890.13	1,940.05	2,000.01	-	-	-	-	2,040.82
Hourly	23.25	23.86	24.50	25.20	25.87	26.67	-	-	-	-	27.21
Social Services Worker 1 - SP1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	48,709.45	50,117.35	51,696.98	53,342.99	55,074.84	56,828.45	-	-	-	-	57,997.14
Bi-weekly	1,873.44	1,927.59	1,988.35	2,051.65	2,118.26	2,185.71	-	-	-	-	2,230.66
Hourly	24.98	25.70	26.51	27.36	28.24	29.14	-	-	-	-	29.74
Social Services Worker 2 - SP2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	51,242.57	53,039.65	54,815.00	56,763.21	58,754.91	60,898.82	-	-	-	-	62,154.51
Bi-weekly	1,970.87	2,039.99	2,108.27	2,183.20	2,259.80	2,342.26	-	-	-	-	2,390.56
Hourly	26.28	27.20	28.11	29.11	30.13	31.23	-	-	-	-	31.87
Social Services Worker 3 - SP3	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	55,897.86	57,931.90	59,902.99	62,132.76	64,470.13	66,873.90	69,254.78	71,982.48	-	-	73,432.76
Bi-weekly	2,149.92	2,228.15	2,303.96	2,389.72	2,479.62	2,572.07	2,663.65	2,768.56	-	-	2,824.34
Hourly	28.67	29.71	30.72	31.86	33.06	34.29	35.52	36.91	-	-	37.66
Social Services Worker 4 - SP4	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	61,655.44	63,886.36	66,094.40	68,497.01	71,008.38	73,563.24	76,290.94	79,364.32	82,417.11	85,491.64	87,223.49
Bi-weekly	2,371.36	2,457.17	2,542.09	2,634.50	2,731.09	2,829.36	2,934.27	3,052.47	3,169.89	3,288.14	3,354.75
Hourly	31.62	32.76	33.89	35.13	36.41	37.72	39.12	40.70	42.27	43.84	44.73
Social Services Worker 5 - SP5	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	71,181.22	73,801.32	76,918.20	79,667.65	82,785.69	85,989.56	89,453.28	92,851.73	96,640.53	-	98,566.98
Bi-weekly	2,737.74	2,838.51	2,958.39	3,064.14	3,184.07	3,307.29	3,440.51	3,571.22	3,716.94	-	3,791.04
Hourly	36.50	37.85	39.45	40.86	42.45	44.10	45.87	47.62	49.56	-	50.55
Support Worker 1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	42,729.71	44,023.88	45,344.61	46,704.94	48,106.09	49,549.27	51,035.75	52,566.82	54,143.83	_	55,768.14
Bi-weekly	1,643.45	1,693.23	1,744.02	1,796.34	1,850.23	1,905.74	1,962.91	2,021.80	2,082.46	-	2,144.93
Hourly	21.91	22.58	23.25	23.95	24.67	25.41	26.17	26.96	27.77	-	28.60
Support Worker 2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Long Service
Annual	43,146.48	44,462.81	45,796.70	47,170.59	48,585.70	50,043.28	51,544.58	53,090.92	54,683.65	-	56,324.16
Bi-weekly	1,659.48	1,710.11	1,761.41	1,814.25	1,868.68	1,924.74	1,982.48	2,041.96	2,103.22	_	2,166.31
Hourly	22.13	22.80	23.49	24.19	24.92	25.66	26.43	27.23	28.04	-	28.88
** /				•							